City of West Plains
1910 Holiday Lane
West Plains, Mo.
417.256.7176

March 2, 2026

To: Sam Anselm, City Administrator
Kellie Mayers, City Clerk

From: Michael McMahon, Project Coordinator
Re: Construction Services — Provalus Project
Executive Summary

The purpose of this council action is to approve the construction contract with the firm Springfield
Builders Incorporated (SBI). This contract will cover all construction work needed for the West Plains —
Provalus project.

Discussion

SBI was the low bidder for the West Plains — Provalus project. The city received three bids in total. The
other two bidders were Killian Construction and Adams Construction. The bids were opened and read
aloud on February 19, 2026, at 2:00 PM.

Fiscal Impact

The bid was split into 2 subdivisions. SBI won the bid with a total bid of $5,166,612.

There are two funding partners for this project. EDA primarily focused on the main floor and Annex and
MoDED Covering from the Basement to the 2™ floor as needed.

EDA - $1,501,373
State Appropriate - $2,500,000
Additional Match $1,202,306



N-FORM

ARCHITECTURE

February 27, 2026

Michael D. McMahon
Project Coordinator
City of West Plains

Mr. McMahon,

It is my pleasure to recommend that the City of West Plains hire Springfield Builders Incorporated
(SBI) for the West Plains Wholesale Grocery — Provalus infill project.

SBl was the lowest bidder for Subdivision 1, which includes EDA funding, and was also the overall
low bidder for the total project. Additionally, Springfield Builders Incorporated was the only
bidder to acknowledge all three addenda and to provide the required Bid Bond, Bidder's
Qualification Statement, Certfificate of Lobbying, and E-Verify form.

Based on these quadlifications and their thorough submission, | fully support awarding this project
to SBI.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this recommendation.

Sincerely,

Travis Tindall, AIA
Principal & Architect

p:417.873.2255 | 312 W Commercial St; Springfield MO, 65803 | www.nformarc.com



Wz
==
N

’
!
WA
W

A AIA Document A101" - 2017

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of
payment is a Stipulated Sum

AGREEMENT made as of the Twenty-Seventh day of February in the year Two Thousand

Twenty-Six
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

City of West Plains, Missouri
1910 North Holiday Lane
West Plains, Missouri 65775
417-257-0392

and the Contractor:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

Springfield Builders Incorporated (SBI)
619 North Jefferson Avenue
Springfield, Missouri 65806
417-865-6200

for the following Project:
(Name, location and detailed description)

601 Washington Avenue
West Plains, MO

The project scope shall include the renovation of the existing Wholesale Grocery Building
in West Plains. This is a brick, three-level facility (two-story plus basement) with

approximately 6,500 sq ft on each level.

The Architect:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

N-FORM Architecture, LLC
312 West Commercial Street
Springfield, Missouri 65803
417-873-2255

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

The parties should complete
A101®-2017, Exhibit A, Insurance
and Bonds, contemporaneously with
this Agreement. AIA Document
A201®-2017, General Conditions of
the Contract for Construction, is
adopted in this document by
reference. Do not use with other
general conditions unless this
document is modified.

AlA Document A101 — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights

Init. reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The 1
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:13:01 ET on 02/27/2026 under Order No.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for
/ resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,

e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (1664447608)
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TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
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3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
4 CONTRACT SUM

5 PAYMENTS

6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

EXHIBIT A INSURANCE AND BONDS

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary, and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed
in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and are
as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the entire
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements,
either written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears in Article 9.

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicated in
the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

ARTICLE 3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be:
(Check one of the following boxes.)

[ 1] The date of this Agreement.
[ ] A date set forth in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.

[ X ] Established as follows:
(Insert a date or a means to determine the date of commencement of the Work.)

Owner approves Contractor to begin any preliminary work needed to secure supplies and
sub-contractors on the March 9, 2026. Detailed construction schedule to follow.

If a date of commencement of the Work is not selected, then the date of commencement shall be the date of this
Agreement.

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement of the Work.

§ 3.3 Substantial Completion

§ 3.3.1 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work:

(Check one of the following boxes and complete the necessary information.)

AIA Document A101 — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:13:01 ET on 02/27/2026 under Order No.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
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[ 1] Not later than () calendar days from the date of commencement of the Work.

[ X1 By the following date: January 12, 2027 as listed in bid submission agreement unless otherwise
agreed upon by all involved parties.

§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work are
to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, the Contractor shall achieve Substantial
Completion of such portions by the following dates:

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date

§ 3.3.3 If the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in this Section 3.3, liquidated damages, if
any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5.

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM

§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be managed in two subdivided portions due to EDA funding. Contract sum for
Subdivision 1 (EDA) shall be Two Million Seven Hundred Three Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-Nine Dollars ($
2,703,679.00 ). Contract sum for Subdivision 2 (MO) shall be Two Million Four Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand Nine
Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars ($ 2,462,933.00 ). The total contract sum for Subdivision 1 and Subdivision 2 shall be
Five Million One Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Six Hundred Twelve Dollars ($ 5,166,612.00 ), subject to additions
and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2 Alternates
§ 4.2.1 Alternates, if any, included in the Contract Sum:

Item Price
None

§ 4.2.2 Subject to the conditions noted below, the following alternates may be accepted by the Owner following
execution of this Agreement. Upon acceptance, the Owner shall issue a Modification to this Agreement.
(Insert below each alternate and the conditions that must be met for the Owner to accept the alternate.)

Item Price Conditions for Acceptance
Not Applicable

§ 4.3 Allowances, if any, included in the Contract Sum:
(Identify each allowance.)

Item Price or Quantity
No. 1 Include 100 square feet of wood $796.00
floor deck replacement per structural

drawings.

No. 2 Include 250 square feet of wood $1,327.50
roof deck replacement per structural

drawings.

No. 3 Include trench rock removal and 5 cubic yards
replacement with satisfactory soil

material.

No. 4 Include a contingency allowance of  $100,000.00
$100,000.00 for use according to Owner’s

written instructions.

§ 4.4 Unit prices, if any:
(Identify the item and state the unit price and quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

AIA Document A101 — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:13:01 ET on 02/27/2026 under Order No.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
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Item Units and Limitations Price per Unit ($0.00)

Removal and replacement of rotted/damaged Square Foot $7.96
wood floor deck

Removal and replacement of rotted/damaged Square Foot $5.31
wood roof deck

Brick Tuckpointing Square Foot $50.00

§ 4.5 Liquidated damages, if any:
(Insert terms and conditions for liquidated damages, if any.)

§ 4.6 Other:
(Insert provisions for bonus or other incentives, if any, that might result in a change to the Contract Sum.)

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS

§ 5.1 Progress Payments

§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Contractor and Certificates for
Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the
Contractor as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the
month, or as follows:

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the 1%t day of a month, the
Owner shall make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the 30" day of the following
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of
the amount certified shall be made by the Owner not later than Sixty (60 ) days after the Architect receives the
Application for Payment.

(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 5.1.4 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Contractor
in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract Sum among the
various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form, and supported by such data to
substantiate its accuracy, as the Architect may require. This schedule of values shall be used as a basis for reviewing
the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

§ 5.1.5 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of
the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.6 In accordance with AIA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, and
subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as
follows:

§ 5.1.6.1 The amount of each progress payment shall first include:

.1 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work;

.2 That portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably
stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction, or, if approved in advance
by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing; and

.3 That portion of Construction Change Directives that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s
professional judgment, to be reasonably justified.

AIA Document A101 — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:13:01 ET on 02/27/2026 under Order No.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for
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§ 5.1.6.2 The amount of each progress payment shall then be reduced by:

A The aggregate of any amounts previously paid by the Owner;

.2 The amount, if any, for Work that remains uncorrected and for which the Architect has previously
withheld a Certificate for Payment as provided in Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017;

.3 Any amount for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier,
unless the Work has been performed by others the Contractor intends to pay;

4 For Work performed or defects discovered since the last payment application, any amount for which
the Architect may withhold payment, or nullify a Certificate of Payment in whole or in part, as provided
in Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017; and

.5  Retainage withheld pursuant to Section 5.1.7.

§ 5.1.7 Retainage

§ 5.1.7.1 For each progress payment made prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, the Owner may withhold the
following amount, as retainage, from the payment otherwise due:

(Insert a percentage or amount to be withheld as retainage from each Application for Payment. The amount of
retainage may be limited by governing law.)

Five Percent (5%)

§ 5.1.7.1.1 The following items are not subject to retainage:
(Insert any items not subject to the withholding of retainage, such as general conditions, insurance, etc.)

§ 5.1.7.2 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:

(If the retainage established in Section 5.1.7.1 is to be modified prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work,
including modifications for Substantial Completion of portions of the Work as provided in Section 3.3.2, insert
provisions for such modifications.)

§ 5.1.7.3 Except as set forth in this Section 5.1.7.3, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, the Contractor may
submit an Application for Payment that includes the retainage withheld from prior Applications for Payment pursuant
to this Section 5.1.7. The Application for Payment submitted at Substantial Completion shall not include retainage as
follows:

(Insert any other conditions for release of retainage upon Substantial Completion.)

§ 5.1.8 If final completion of the Work is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor, the Owner shall pay
the Contractor any additional amounts in accordance with Article 9 of AIA Document A201-2017.

§ 5.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for
materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ 5.2 Final Payment
§ 5.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the
Contractor when
.1 the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor’s responsibility to correct
Work as provided in Article 12 of AIA Document A201-2017, and to satisfy other requirements, if any,
which extend beyond final payment; and
.2 afinal Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

§ 5.2.2 The Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the
Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

AIA Document A101 — 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
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§ 5.3 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated below,
or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is located.
(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

%

ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§ 6.1 Initial Decision Maker

The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, unless the
parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker.

(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if
other than the Architect.)

§ 6.2 Binding Dispute Resolution

For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201-2017, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriate box.)

[ 1] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2017

[ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1] Other (Specify)

If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 7.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2017.

§ 7.1.1 If the Contract is terminated for the Owner’s convenience in accordance with Article 14 of ATA Document
A201-2017, then the Owner shall pay the Contractor a termination fee as follows:

(Insert the amount of, or method for determining, the fee, if any, payable to the Contractor following a termination for
the Owner’s convenience.)

§ 7.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2017.

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201-2017 or another Contract
Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract
Documents.

§ 8.2 The Owner’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)
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City of West Plains, Missouri
Michael McMahon

1910 North Holiday Lane

West Plains, Missouri 65775
417-257-0392
michael.mcmahon@westplains.gov

§ 8.3 The Contractor’s representative:
(Name, address, email address, and other information)

Springfield Builders Incorporated (SBI)
Tony Hopkins

619 North Jefferson Avenue
Springfield, Missouri 65806
417-865-6200
tony@springfieldbuilders.com

§ 8.4 Neither the Owner’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ prior notice to the
other party.

§ 8.5 Insurance and Bonds

§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document
A101™-2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a
Stipulated Sum, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in ATA Document A101™-2017 Exhibit A, and elsewhere in
the Contract Documents.

§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A201-2017, may be given in accordance
with a building information modeling exhibit, if completed, or as otherwise set forth below:

(If other than in accordance with a building information modeling exhibit, insert requirements for delivering notice in
electronic format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be
required to generate a read receipt for the transmission.)

§ 8.7 Other provisions:

ARTICLE 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
§ 9.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents:
A1 AIA Document A101™-2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor
2 ATA Document A101™-2017, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds
3 ATA Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction
4  Building information modeling exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the building information modeling exhibit incorporated into this Agreement.)

N/A
.5  Drawings
Title Date

Documents for Advertisement (72 pages) Signed: 11/24/2025
Released for Bid: 01/24/2026
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.6 Specifications

Section Title Date Pages
See attached Table of Contents

.7 Addenda, if any:

Number Date Pages
ADD 1 02/05/2026 87
ADD 2 02/13/2026 11
ADD 3 02/17/2026 3

Portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements are not part of the Contract
Documents unless the bidding or proposal requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.

.8 Other Exhibits:
(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where
required.)

[ ] ATA Document E204™-2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this Agreement.)

[ ] The Sustainability Plan:

Title Date Pages

[ ] Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document Title Date Pages

9 Other documents, if any, listed below:
(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA
Document A201™-2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders,
sample forms, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or
proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such
documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.)

-Architect’s Bid Tabulation Summary Document (Attached)
-Contractor’s Schedule of Values for Subdivision 1 (Attached)
-Contractor’s Schedule of Values for Subdivision 2 (Attached)
-Contractor’s Complete Bid Packet (Not Attached)

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) CONTRACTOR (Signature)

(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)
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Insurance and Bonds

This Insurance and Bonds Exhibit is part of the Agreement, between the Owner and the
Contractor, dated the Twenty-Seventh day of February in the year Two Thousand
Twenty-Six

(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)

Wholesale Grocery Building Renovation (WPWGQG)
601 Washington Avenue
West Plains, Missouri

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status and address)

City of West Plains, Missouri
1910 North Holiday Lane
West Plains, Missouri 65775
417-257-0392

THE CONTRACTOR:
(Name, legal status and address)

Springfield Builders Incorporated (SBI)
619 North Jefferson Avenue
Springfield, Missouri 65806
417-865-6200

TABLE OF ARTICLES

AA GENERAL

A2 OWNER'’S INSURANCE

A3 CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE AND BONDS

A4 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE A1 GENERAL

The Owner and Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance, and provide bonds, as
set forth in this Exhibit. As used in this Exhibit, the term General Conditions refers to ATA

Document A201™-2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

ARTICLE A.2

§ A.2.1 General
Prior to commencement of the Work, the Owner shall secure the insurance, and provide
evidence of the coverage, required under this Article A.2 and, upon the Contractor’s
request, provide a copy of the property insurance policy or policies required by Section

OWNER'’S INSURANCE

_AIA Document A101" - 2017 Exhibit A

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

This document is intended to be used
in conjunction with AIA Document
A201®-2017, General Conditions of
the Contract for Construction. Article
11 of A201®-2017 contains
additional insurance provisions.

AIA Document A101 — 2017 Exhibit A. Copyright © 2017. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA
Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 12:27:56 ET on 02/27/2026 under
Order No0.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract

Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
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A.2.3. The copy of the policy or policies provided shall contain all applicable conditions, definitions, exclusions, and
endorsements.

§ A.2.2 Liability Insurance
The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual general liability insurance.

§ A.2.3 Required Property Insurance

§ A.2.3.1 Unless this obligation is placed on the Contractor pursuant to Section A.3.3.2.1, the Owner shall purchase
and maintain, from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located, property insurance written on a builder’s risk "all-risks" completed value or
equivalent policy form and sufficient to cover the total value of the entire Project on a replacement cost basis. The
Owner’s property insurance coverage shall be no less than the amount of the initial Contract Sum, plus the value of
subsequent Modifications and labor performed and materials or equipment supplied by others. The property insurance
shall be maintained until Substantial Completion and thereafter as provided in Section A.2.3.1.3, unless otherwise
provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by the parties to this Agreement. This insurance
shall include the interests of the Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors in the Project as insureds.
This insurance shall include the interests of mortgagees as loss payees.

§ A.2.3.1.1 Causes of Loss. The insurance required by this Section A.2.3.1 shall provide coverage for direct physical
loss or damage, and shall not exclude the risks of fire, explosion, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse,
earthquake, flood, or windstorm. The insurance shall also provide coverage for ensuing loss or resulting damage from
error, omission, or deficiency in construction methods, design, specifications, workmanship, or materials. Sub-limits,
if any, are as follows:

(Indicate below the cause of loss and any applicable sub-limit.)

Causes of Loss Sub-Limit

§ A.2.3.1.2 Specific Required Coverages. The insurance required by this Section A.2.3.1 shall provide coverage for loss
or damage to falsework and other temporary structures, and to building systems from testing and startup. The
insurance shall also cover debris removal, including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any applicable legal
requirements, and reasonable compensation for the Architect’s and Contractor’s services and expenses required as a
result of such insured loss, including claim preparation expenses. Sub-limits, if any, are as follows:

(Indicate below type of coverage and any applicable sub-limit for specific required coverages.)

Coverage Sub-Limit

§ A.2.3.1.3 Unless the parties agree otherwise, upon Substantial Completion, the Owner shall continue the insurance
required by Section A.2.3.1 or, if necessary, replace the insurance policy required under Section A.2.3.1 with property
insurance written for the total value of the Project that shall remain in effect until expiration of the period for
correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 of the General Conditions.

§ A.2.3.1.4 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. If the insurance required by this Section A.2.3 is subject to
deductibles or self-insured retentions, the Owner shall be responsible for all loss not covered because of such
deductibles or retentions.

§ A.2.3.2 Occupancy or Use Prior to Substantial Completion. The Owner’s occupancy or use of any completed or
partially completed portion of the Work prior to Substantial Completion shall not commence until the insurance
company or companies providing the insurance under Section A.2.3.1 have consented in writing to the continuance of
coverage. The Owner and the Contractor shall take no action with respect to partial occupancy or use that would cause
cancellation, lapse, or reduction of insurance, unless they agree otherwise in writing.

§ A.2.3.3 Insurance for Existing Structures
If the Work involves remodeling an existing structure or constructing an addition to an existing structure, the Owner
shall purchase and maintain, until the expiration of the period for correction of Work as set forth in Section 12.2.2 of
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the General Conditions, "all-risks" property insurance, on a replacement cost basis, protecting the existing structure
against direct physical loss or damage from the causes of loss identified in Section A.2.3.1, notwithstanding the
undertaking of the Work. The Owner shall be responsible for all co-insurance penalties.

§ A.2.4 Optional Extended Property Insurance.

The Owner shall purchase and maintain the insurance selected and described below.

(Select the types of insurance the Owner is required to purchase and maintain by placing an X in the box(es) next to
the description(s) of selected insurance. For each type of insurance selected, indicate applicable limits of coverage or
other conditions in the fill point below the selected item.)

[ 1] § A.2.4.1 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance, to reimburse the
Owner for loss of use of the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations due to a
covered cause of loss.

[ ] § A.2.4.2 Ordinance or Law Insurance, for the reasonable and necessary costs to satisfy the minimum
requirements of the enforcement of any law or ordinance regulating the demolition, construction,
repair, replacement or use of the Project.

[ ] § A.2.4.3 Expediting Cost Insurance, for the reasonable and necessary costs for the temporary repair of
damage to insured property, and to expedite the permanent repair or replacement of the damaged

property.

[ 1 § A.2.4.4 Extra Expense Insurance, to provide reimbursement of the reasonable and necessary excess
costs incurred during the period of restoration or repair of the damaged property that are over and above
the total costs that would normally have been incurred during the same period of time had no loss or
damage occurred.

[ ] § A.2.4.5 Civil Authority Insurance, for losses or costs arising from an order of a civil authority
prohibiting access to the Project, provided such order is the direct result of physical damage covered
under the required property insurance.

[ ] § A.2.4.6 Ingress/Egress Insurance, for loss due to the necessary interruption of the insured’s business
due to physical prevention of ingress to, or egress from, the Project as a direct result of physical
damage.

[ 1 § A.2.4.7 Soft Costs Insurance, to reimburse the Owner for costs due to the delay of completion of the
Work, arising out of physical loss or damage covered by the required property insurance: including
construction loan fees; leasing and marketing expenses; additional fees, including those of architects,
engineers, consultants, attorneys and accountants, needed for the completion of the construction,
repairs, or reconstruction; and carrying costs such as property taxes, building permits, additional
interest on loans, realty taxes, and insurance premiums over and above normal expenses.
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§ A.2.5 Other Optional Insurance.

The Owner shall purchase and maintain the insurance selected below.

(Select the types of insurance the Owner is required to purchase and maintain by placing an X in the box(es) next to
the description(s) of selected insurance.)

[ 1 § A.2.5.1 Cyber Security Insurance for loss to the Owner due to data security and privacy breach,
including costs of investigating a potential or actual breach of confidential or private information.
(Indicate applicable limits of coverage or other conditions in the fill point below.)

[ 1] § A.2.5.2 Other Insurance
(List below any other insurance coverage to be provided by the Owner and any applicable limits.)

Coverage Limits

ARTICLE A.3 CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE AND BONDS

§ A.3.1 General

§ A.3.1.1 Certificates of Insurance. The Contractor shall provide certificates of insurance acceptable to the Owner
evidencing compliance with the requirements in this Article A.3 at the following times: (1) prior to commencement of
the Work; (2) upon renewal or replacement of each required policy of insurance; and (3) upon the Owner’s written
request. An additional certificate evidencing continuation of commercial liability coverage, including coverage for
completed operations, shall be submitted with the final Application for Payment and thereafter upon renewal or
replacement of such coverage until the expiration of the periods required by Section A.3.2.1 and Section A.3.3.1. The
certificates will show the Owner as an additional insured on the Contractor’s Commercial General Liability and excess
or umbrella liability policy or policies.

§ A.3.1.2 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. The Contractor shall disclose to the Owner any deductible or self-
insured retentions applicable to any insurance required to be provided by the Contractor.

§ A.3.1.3 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall cause the
commercial general liability coverage to include (1) the Owner, the Architect, and the Architect’s consultants as
additional insureds for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the
Contractor’s operations; and (2) the Owner as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the
Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions for which loss occurs during completed operations. The additional insured
coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s general liability insurance policies and shall
apply to both ongoing and completed operations. To the extent commercially available, the additional insured
coverage shall be no less than that provided by Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) forms CG 20 10 07 04, CG 20 37
07 04, and, with respect to the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, CG 20 32 07 04.

§ A.3.2 Contractor’s Required Insurance Coverage

§ A.3.2.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the following types and limits of insurance from an insurance
company or insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is
located. The Contractor shall maintain the required insurance until the expiration of the period for correction of Work
as set forth in Section 12.2.2 of the General Conditions, unless a different duration is stated below:

(If the Contractor is required to maintain insurance for a duration other than the expiration of the period for
correction of Work, state the duration.)

§ A.3.2.2 Commercial General Liability

§ A.3.2.2.1 Commercial General Liability insurance for the Project written on an occurrence form with policy limits of
not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00 ) each occurrence, Five Million Dollars ($ 5,000,000.00 )
general aggregate, and One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00 ) aggregate for products-completed operations hazard,
providing coverage for claims including
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A damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, including occupational sickness or disease, and
death of any person;

.2 personal injury and advertising injury;

.3 damages because of physical damage to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use of
such property;

4 bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and

.5  the Contractor’s indemnity obligations under Section 3.18 of the General Conditions.

§ A.3.2.2.2 The Contractor’s Commercial General Liability policy under this Section A.3.2.2 shall not contain an
exclusion or restriction of coverage for the following:
1 Claims by one insured against another insured, if the exclusion or restriction is based solely on the fact
that the claimant is an insured, and there would otherwise be coverage for the claim.
.2 Claims for property damage to the Contractor’s Work arising out of the products-completed operations
hazard where the damaged Work or the Work out of which the damage arises was performed by a
Subcontractor.
Claims for bodily injury other than to employees of the insured.
4 Claims for indemnity under Section 3.18 of the General Conditions arising out of injury to employees
of the insured.
.5  Claims or loss excluded under a prior work endorsement or other similar exclusionary language.
.6 Claims or loss due to physical damage under a prior injury endorsement or similar exclusionary
language.
.7 Claims related to residential, multi-family, or other habitational projects, if the Work is to be performed
on such a project.
.8 Claims related to roofing, if the Work involves roofing.
9  Claims related to exterior insulation finish systems (EIFS), synthetic stucco or similar exterior coatings
or surfaces, if the Work involves such coatings or surfaces.
A0 Claims related to earth subsidence or movement, where the Work involves such hazards.
A1 Claims related to explosion, collapse and underground hazards, where the Work involves such hazards.

3%

§ A.3.2.3 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Contractor, with policy
limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00 ) per accident, for bodily injury, death of any person, and
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles along with any other
statutorily required automobile coverage.

§ A.3.2.4 The Contractor may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such
primary and excess or umbrella insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages required
under Section A.3.2.2 and A.3.2.3, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide narrower
coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying limits only
through the actual payment by the underlying insurers.

§ A.3.2.5 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits.

§ A.3.2.6 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than ($ ) each accident, ($ ) each employee, and ($
) policy limit.

§ A.3.2.7 Jones Act, and the Longshore & Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act, as required, if the Work involves
hazards arising from work on or near navigable waterways, including vessels and docks

§ A.3.2.8 If the Contractor is required to furnish professional services as part of the Work, the Contractor shall procure
Professional Liability insurance covering performance of the professional services, with policy limits of not less than
One Million Dollars ($ 1,000,000.00 ) per claim and Two Million Dollars ($ 2,000,000.00 ) in the aggregate.

§ A.3.2.9 If the Work involves the transport, dissemination, use, or release of pollutants, the Contractor shall procure
Pollution Liability insurance, with policy limits of not less than ($ ) perclaimand ($ ) in the aggregate.
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§ A.3.2.10 Coverage under Sections A.3.2.8 and A.3.2.9 may be procured through a Combined Professional Liability
and Pollution Liability insurance policy, with combined policy limits of not less than ($ ) per claimand ($ )in
the aggregate.

§ A.3.2.11 Insurance for maritime liability risks associated with the operation of a vessel, if the Work requires such
activities, with policy limits of not less than ($ ) perclaimand ($ ) in the aggregate.

§ A.3.2.12 Insurance for the use or operation of manned or unmanned aircraft, if the Work requires such activities, with
policy limits of not less than (§ ) perclaimand ($ ) in the aggregate.

§ A.3.3 Contractor’s Other Insurance Coverage

§ A.3.3.1 Insurance selected and described in this Section A.3.3 shall be purchased from an insurance company or
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The
Contractor shall maintain the required insurance until the expiration of the period for correction of Work as set forth in
Section 12.2.2 of the General Conditions, unless a different duration is stated below:

(If the Contractor is required to maintain any of the types of insurance selected below for a duration other than the
expiration of the period for correction of Work, state the duration.)

§ A.3.3.2 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the following types and limits of insurance in accordance with
Section A.3.3.1.

(Select the types of insurance the Contractor is required to purchase and maintain by placing an X in the box(es) next
to the description(s) of selected insurance. Where policy limits are provided, include the policy limit in the

appropriate fill point.)

[ ] § A.3.3.2.1 Property insurance of the same type and scope satisfying the requirements identified in
Section A.2.3, which, if selected in this section A.3.3.2.1, relieves the Owner of the responsibility to
purchase and maintain such insurance except insurance required by Section A.2.3.1.3 and Section
A.2.3.3. The Contractor shall comply with all obligations of the Owner under Section A.2.3 except to
the extent provided below. The Contractor shall disclose to the Owner the amount of any deductible,
and the Owner shall be responsible for losses within the deductible. Upon request, the Contractor shall
provide the Owner with a copy of the property insurance policy or policies required. The Owner shall
adjust and settle the loss with the insurer and be the trustee of the proceeds of the property insurance in
accordance with Article 11 of the General Conditions unless otherwise set forth below:

(Where the Contractor’s obligation to provide property insurance differs from the Owner’s obligations
as described under Section A.2.3, indicate such differences in the space below. Additionally, if a party
other than the Owner will be responsible for adjusting and settling a loss with the insurer and acting as
the trustee of the proceeds of property insurance in accordance with Article 11 of the General
Conditions, indicate the responsible party below.)

[ ] § A.3.3.2.2 Railroad Protective Liability Insurance, with policy limits of not less than ($ ) per claim
and ($ ) in the aggregate, for Work within fifty (50) feet of railroad property.

[ ] § A.3.3.2.3 Asbestos Abatement Liability Insurance, with policy limits of not less than ($ ) per claim
and ($§ ) inthe aggregate, for liability arising from the encapsulation, removal, handling, storage,
transportation, and disposal of asbestos-containing materials.

[ 1] § A.3.3.2.4 Insurance for physical damage to property while it is in storage and in transit to the
construction site on an "all-risks" completed value form.

[ ] § A.3.3.2.5 Property insurance on an "all-risks" completed value form, covering property owned by the
Contractor and used on the Project, including scaffolding and other equipment.
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[ ] § A.3.3.2.6 Other Insurance
(List below any other insurance coverage to be provided by the Contractor and any applicable limits.)

Coverage Limits

§ A.3.4 Performance Bond and Payment Bond

The Contractor shall provide surety bonds, from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in
the jurisdiction where the Project is located, as follows:

(Specify type and penal sum of bonds.)

Type Penal Sum ($0.00)
| Payment Bond Contract Price
| Performance Bond Contract Price

Payment and Performance Bonds shall be ATA Document A312™, Payment Bond and Performance Bond, or contain
provisions identical to AIA Document A312™, current as of the date of this Agreement.

ARTICLE A4 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Insurance and Bonds Exhibit, if any, are as follows:
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for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)

(Name and location or address)
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601 Washington Avenue
West Plains, Missouri

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status and address)

City of West Plains, Missouri
1910 North Holiday Lane
West Plains, Missouri 65775

THE ARCHITECT:
(Name, legal status and address)

N-FORM Architecture, LLC
312 West Commercial Street
Springfield, Missouri 65803
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Certificates for Payment
4.2.1,42.5,42.9,9.3.3,94,9.5,9.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,
9.10.1,9.10.3,14.1.1.3,14.2.4,15.1.4

Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.44

Certificates of Insurance

9.10.2

Change Orders
1.1.1,3.42,3.7.4,3.8.2.3,3.11,3.12.8,4.2.8,5.2.3,
7.12,7.13,7.2,73.2,73.7,7.3.9,7.3.10, 8.3.1,
9.3.1.1,9.10.3,10.3.2, 11.2, 11.5, 12.1.2

Change Orders, Definition of

7.2.1

CHANGES IN THE WORK
2.2.2,3.11,428,7,7.2.1,7.3.1,7.4,8.3.1,9.3.1.1,
11.5

Claims, Definition of

15.1.1

Claims, Notice of

1.6.2,15.1.3

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
324,6.1.1,6.3,7.3.9,9.3.3,9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims

15.4.1

Claims for Additional Cost
3.24,33.1,3.74,73.9,9.5.2,10.2.5,10.3.2, 15.1.5
Claims for Additional Time
3.24,33.1,3.74,6.1.1,8.3.2,9.5.2,10.3.2, 15.1.6
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.74

Claims for Damages
3.24,3.18,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3,
11.3.2,14.2.4, 15.1.7

Claims Subject to Arbitration

15.4.1

Cleaning Up

3.15,6.3

Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
2.2.1,3.2.2,3.4.1,3.7.1,3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3,
6.2.2,8.1.2,8.2.2,83.1,11.1,11.2,15.1.5
Commencement of the Work, Definition of

8.1.2

Communications

39.1,424

Completion, Conditions Relating to
34.1,3.11,3.15,4.2.2,4.2.9,8.2,9.4.2,9.8,9.9.1,
9.10,12.2,14.1.2,15.1.2

COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND

9

Completion, Substantial
3.10.1,4.2.9,8.1.1,8.1.3,8.2.3,9.4.2,9.8,9.9.1,
9.10.3,12.2,15.1.2

Compliance with Laws
2.3.2,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10,3.13,9.6.4, 10.2.2, 13.1,
13.3,13.4.1,13.4.2,13.5,14.1.1, 14.2.1.3, 15.2.8,
15.4.2,15.43

Concealed or Unknown Conditions
3.74,4.2.8,83.1,10.3

Conditions of the Contract

1.1.1,6.1.1,6.1.4

Consent, Written
34.2,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 13.2,
15.4.4.2

Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6

Construction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1

Construction Change Directives
1.1.1,3.4.2,3.11,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1.1,7.1.2,7.1.3, 7.3,
9.3.1.1

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10,3.11,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
54,1422.2

Continuing Contract Performance

15.1.4

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR
SUSPENSION OF THE

54.1.1,54.2,11.5, 14

Contract Administration

3.1.3,4,9.4,9.5

Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating
to

3.7.1,3.10,5.2, 6.1

Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.5.2,2.3.6,5.3

Contract Documents, Definition of

1.11

Contract Sum
22.2,2.2.4,374,3.75,3.8,3.102,52.3,7.3,74,
9.1,9.2,9.4.2,9.5.1.4,9.6.7,9.7,10.3.2, 11.5, 12.1.2,
12.3,14.2.4,14.3.2,15.1.4.2,15.1.5,15.2.5
Contract Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
1.14,2.2.1,2.2.2,3.74,3.7.5,3.10.2,5.2.3,6.1.5,
7.2.1.3,73.1,73.5,7.3.6,7,7,7.3.10,7.4,8.1.1,
8.2.1,8.2.3,8.3.1,9.5.1,9.7,10.3.2, 12.1.1, 12.1.2,
14.3.2,15.1.4.2,15.1.6.1,15.2.5

Contract Time, Definition of

8.1.1

CONTRACTOR

3

Contractor, Definition of

3.1,6.1.2

Contractor’s Construction and Submittal
Schedules

3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,4.2.3,6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
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Contractor’s Employees
22.4,33.2,3.43,3.8.1,3.9,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6, 10.2,
10.3,11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

Contractor’s Liability Insurance

11.1

Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5,3.14.2,42.4,6,11.3,12.2.4

Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2,2.2.4,3.3.2,3.18.1,3.18.2,4.2.4,5,9.6.2,9.6.7,
9.10.2,11.2,11.3,11.4

Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2,1.5,2.3.3,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.2.4,3.3.1,3.4.2,
3.5.1,3.74,3.10,3.11,3.12,3.16,3.18,4.2,5.2,6.2.2,
7,8.3.1,9.2,9.3,9.4,9.5,9.7,9.8,9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3,
11.3,12,13.4,15.1.3,15.2.1

Contractor’s Representations
3.2.1,3.2.2,3.5,3.12.6,6.2.2,8.2.1,9.3.3,9.8.2
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the
Work

3.3.2,3.18,5.3,6.1.3,6.2,9.5.1,10.2.8

Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents

3.2

Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work

2.2.2,9.7

Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract

14.1

Contractor’s Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,4.2.7,5.2.1,5.2.3,9.2,9.3,9.8.2,
9.8.3,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3

Contractor’s Superintendent

3.9,10.2.6

Contractor’s Supervision and Construction
Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,3.4,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,6.1.3,6.2.4,7.1.3,
7.3.4,73.6,8.2,10,12,14,15.1.4

Coordination and Correlation
1.2,3.2.1,3.3.1,3.10,3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1

Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
1.5,2.3.6,3.11

Copyrights

1.5,3.17

Correction of Work
2.5,3.73,94.2,9.82,9.8.3,9.9.1,12.1.2,12.2, 12.3,
15.1.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1

Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2

Cost, Definition of

7.3.4

Costs
2.5,324,3.73,3.8.2,3.152,54.2,6.1.1,6.2.3,
7.3.3.3,7.3.4,7.3.8,7.3.9,9.10.2,10.3.2,10.3.6, 11.2,
12.1.2,12.2.1,12.2.4, 134, 14

Cutting and Patching

3.14,6.2.5

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors

3.14.2,6.2.4,10.2.1.2,10.2.5,10.4, 12.2.4

Damage to the Work

3.14.2,9.9.1,10.2.1.2,10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.24,3.18,6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.3.2,
11.3,14.2.4,15.1.7

Damages for Delay
6.2.3,8.3.3,9.5.1.6,9.7,10.3.2, 14.3.2

Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
813

Day, Definition of

8.1.4

Decisions of the Architect
3.74,42.6,42.7,42.11,4.2.12,4.2.13,6.3,7.3.4,
7.3.9,8.1.3,8.3.1,9.2,9.4,9.5.1,9.84,9.9.1,13.4.2,
14.2.2,14.2.4,15.1,15.2

Decisions to Withhold Certification
9.4.1,9.5,9.7,14.1.1.3

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
2.5,3.5,4.2.6,6.2.3,9.5.1,9.5.3,9.6.6,9.8.2,9.9.3,
9.10.4, 12.2.1

Definitions

1.1,2.1.1,3.1.1, 3.5,3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3,4.1.1, 5.1,
6.1.2,72.1,7.3.1,8.1,9.1,9.8.1, 15.1.1

Delays and Extensions of Time
3.2,3.74,52.3,7.2.1,73.1,7.4,8.3,9.5.1, 9.7,
10.3.2,10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5

Digital Data Use and Transmission

1.7

Disputes

6.3,7.3.9,15.1,15.2

Documents and Samples at the Site

3.11

Drawings, Definition of

1.1.5

Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.11

Effective Date of Insurance

8.2.2

Emergencies

104, 14.1.1.2,15.1.5

Employees, Contractor’s
3.3.2,343,3.8.1,3.9,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6, 10.2,
10.3.3,11.3,14.1, 14.2.1.1

Equipment, Labor, or Materials
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1,
42.6,42.7,52.1,6.2.1,7.3.4,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2,10.2.1,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3,1.2.1,1.2.2,2.3.4,2.3.6,3.1,3.3.1,3.4.1,3.7.1,
3.10.1,3.12,3.14,4.2,6.2.2,7.1.3,7.3.6,8.2,9.5.1,
9.9.1,10.2,10.3,12.1,12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.4
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Init.

Extensions of Time
324,374,523,72.1,7.3,7.4,9.5.1,9.7,10.3.2,
10.4,14.3, 15.1.6, 15.2.5

Failure of Payment

9.5.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Faulty Work

(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)

Final Completion and Final Payment
42.1,429,9.82,9.10,12.3,14.2.4,14.4.3
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
2.2.1,1322,14.1.1.4

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1

Governing Law

13.1

Guarantees (See Warranty)

Hazardous Materials and Substances
10.2.4,10.3

Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
5.2.1

Indemnification

3.17,3.18,9.6.8,9.10.2, 10.3.3, 11.3
Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.1.2,2.2,23,3.2.2,3.12.10.1,6.1.3,6.1.4, 6.2.5,
9.6.1,9.9.2,9.10.3,10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2,
14.1.1.4,14.1.4,15.1.4

Initial Decision

15.2

Initial Decision Maker, Definition of

1.1.8

Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
14.2.4,15.1.4.2,15.2.1,15.2.2,15.2.3,15.2.4,15.2.5
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
14.2.4,15.1.4.2,15.2.1,15.2.2,15.2.3,15.2.4,15.2.5
Injury or Damage to Person or Property
10.2.8, 10.4

Inspections
3.1.3,3.3.3,3.7.1,42.2,4.2.6,4.2.9,9.4.2,9.8.3,
9.9.2,9.10.1,12.2.1,13.4

Instructions to Bidders

1.1.1

Instructions to the Contractor
324,33.1,3.8.1,52.1,7,8.2.2,12,13.4.2
Instruments of Service, Definition of

1.1.7

Insurance
6.1.1,7.3.4,8.2.2,9.3.2,9.8.4,9.9.1,9.10.2,10.2.5, 11
Insurance, Notice of Cancellation or Expiration
11.1.4,11.2.3

Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

11.1

Insurance, Effective Date of

8.2.2,14.4.2

Insurance, Owner’s Liability

11.2

Insurance, Property

10.2.5,11.2,11.4,11.5

Insurance, Stored Materials

932

INSURANCE AND BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1

Insured loss, Adjustment and Settlement of

11.5

Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1,42.7,4.2.12,4.2.13

Interest

13.5

Interpretation

1.1.8,1.2.3,14,4.1.1,5.1,6.1.2, 15.1.1
Interpretations, Written

4.2.11,4.2.12

Judgment on Final Award

15.4.2

Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
52.1,6.2.1,7.34,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,9.10.2, 10.2.1,
10.2.4,14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Labor Disputes

8.3.1

Laws and Regulations
1.5,2.3.2,3.2.3,3.24,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6 .4,
9.9.1,10.2.2,13.1, 13.3.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8,
15.4

Liens

2.1.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,9.6.8,9.10.2,9.10.4, 15.2.8
Limitations, Statutes of

12.2.5,15.1.2,15.4.1.1

Limitations of Liability

3.2.2,3.5,3.12.10, 3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6,
42.7,622,9.42,9.6.4,9.6.7,9.6.8,10.2.5, 10.3.3,
11.3,12.2.5,13.3.1

Limitations of Time
2.1.2,2.2,2.5,3.2.2,3.10,3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7,
52,53,54.1,6.2.4,7.3,74,82,9.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,
9.4.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15,
15.1.2,15.1.3,15.1.5

Materials, Hazardous

10.2.4,10.3

Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4.1,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
52.1,6.2.1,7.3.4,9.3.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,9.10.2,
10.2.1.2,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and
Procedures of Construction
3.3.1,3.12.10,4.2.2,4.2.7,9.4.2

Mechanic’s Lien
2.1.2,9.3.1,9.3.3,9.6.8,9.10.2,9.10.4, 15.2.8
Mediation

8.3.1,15.1.3.2,15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 15.4.1,
15.4.1.1

Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1,3.42,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1,7.4
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MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13

Modifications, Definition of

1.1.1

Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1,1.1.2,2.5,3.11,4.1.2,42.1,52.3,7,8.3.1,9.7,
10.3.2

Mutual Responsibility

6.2

Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
24,2.5,3.5,42.6,6.2.4,9.5.1,9.8.2,9.9.3,9.104,
12.2

Notice
1.6,1.6.1,1.6.2,2.1.2,2.2.2.,2.2.3,2.2.4,2.5,3.2.4,
3.3.1,3.7.4,3.7.5,3.9.2,3.12.9,3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4,
8.2.29.6.8,9.7,9.10.1, 10.2.8, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.2.2.1,
13.4.1,13.4.2,14.1, 14.2.2, 14.4.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5,
15.1.6, 15.4.1

Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Insurance
11.1.4,11.2.3

Notice of Claims
1.6.2,2.1.2,3.7.4,9.6.8,10.2.8,15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6,
15.2.8,15.3.2, 154.1

Notice of Testing and Inspections

13.4.1,13.4.2

Observations, Contractor’s

32,374

Occupancy

2.3.1,9.6.6,9.8

Orders, Written
1.1.1,2.4,39.2,7,82.2,11.5,12.1,12.2.2.1,13.4.2,
14.3.1

OWNER

2

Owner, Definition of

2.1.1

Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements
22,1322,14.1.14

Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2.1.2,2.2,2.3,3.2.2,3.12.10,6.1.3,6.1.4,6.2.5,9.3.2,
9.6.1,9.6.4,9.9.2,9.10.3,10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2,
14.1.14,14.14,15.1.4

Owner’s Authority
1.5,2.1.1,2.3.32.4,2.5,3.42,3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2,
4.12,424,429,52.1,52.4,54.1,6.1,6.3,7.2.1,
7.3.1,82.2,83.1,9.32,9.5.1,9.6.4,9.9.1, 9.10.2,
10.3.2,11.4,11.5,12.2.2,12.3,13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4,
15.2.7

Owner’s Insurance

11.2

Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,52,5.3,54,9.6.4,9.10.2, 14.2.2

Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work

25,1422

Owner’s Right to Clean Up

6.3

Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to
Award Separate Contracts

6.1

Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

24

Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work

14.3

Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract

14.2, 14.4

Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications
and Other Instruments of Service
1.1.1,1.1.6,1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6,3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12,
53

Partial Occupancy or Use

9.6.6,9.9

Patching, Cutting and

3.14,6.2.5

Patents

3.17

Payment, Applications for
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ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 Basic Definitions

§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents

The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions),
Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement,
and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract
signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written order for a minor
change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract
Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other
information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, or
portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements.

§ 1.1.2 The Contract

The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the
Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 The Work

The term "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or
partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the
Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 The Project
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or
a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors.

§ 1.1.5 The Drawings
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 The Specifications
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service

Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible
and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their respective
professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models,
sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 Initial Decision Maker

The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in
accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the Owner or Contractor and
shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents

§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion
of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as
binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the
Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results.
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§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and
enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give
effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Contract.

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be
performed by any trade.

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 1.3 Capitalization
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered
articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 Interpretation

In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and "any" and articles
such as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is
not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other
reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors,
Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or
distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be
construed as publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if
any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may not
use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work without
the specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.6 Notice

§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by courier,
or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement.

§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified
or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission
The parties shall agree upon written protocols governing the transmission and use of, and reliance on, Instruments of
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form.

§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance

Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to written protocols
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model shall be at the using or relying party’s
sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors to, the
building information model, and each of their agents and employees.
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ARTICLE 2 OWNER

§ 2.1 General

§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract
Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express
authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term "Owner" means the Owner
or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located,
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner’s Financial Arrangements

§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the
Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations
under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such
evidence. If commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shall be extended
appropriately.

§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to
the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations
under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract Documents require;
(2) the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due;
or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails to provide such evidence, as
required, within fourteen days of the Contractor’s request, the Contractor may immediately stop the Work and, in that
event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request is made because a change in the Work
materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor may immediately stop only that portion of the
Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the
Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the
Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 2.2.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.

§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as "confidential," the Contractor
shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the Contractor may
disclose "confidential" information, after seven (7) days’ notice to the Owner, where disclosure is required by law,
including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or by court
or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose "confidential" information to its employees, consultants,
sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to know the content of such
information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information.

§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner

§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities.

§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor has
no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect.
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§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the
Work.

§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and
relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Contractor’s
written request for such information or services.

§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.

§ 2.4 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner
may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has
been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner
to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by
Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.5 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work

If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails
within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or
neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have,
correct such default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to
prior approval of the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for
Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of
correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services
made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such
amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the
Owner or the Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to
Article 15.

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR

§ 3.1 General

§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction
where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express
authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term "Contractor”" means the
Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor

§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the
information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These
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Init.

obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall
promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor’s
review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise
specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws,
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall
promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for
information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3,
the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of
Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, as
would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those
obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors,
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions
and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures

§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences,
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract Documents give
specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, the Contractor
shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences
or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner and Architect, and shall propose
alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect shall evaluate the proposed
alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed construction. Unless the Architect objects
to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using its alternative means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures.

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 Labor and Materials

§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8
or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the
consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction
Change Directive.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly
skilled in tasks assigned to them.
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§ 3.5 Warranty

§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract
will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects,
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the Architect,
the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the
name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4.

§ 3.6 Taxes

The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to
go into effect.

§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws

§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required
at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such
Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions

If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions
that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an
unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in
construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide
notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after first
observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines
that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for,
performance of any part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those
indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall
promptly notify the Owner and Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s determination or
recommendation, that party may submit a Claim as provided in Article 15.

§ 3.7.5If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice,
the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the
operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall
continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract
Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15.

§ 3.8 Allowances

§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but
the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection.
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§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,

A allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all
required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;

.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and
other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but
not in the allowances; and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs
and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 3.8.2.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 Superintendent

§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at
the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the
name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect may
notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed
superintendent or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day
period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

§ 3.10 Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules

§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s
information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the
Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of
Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for
completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to
completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at
appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project.

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter as necessary to maintain a current
submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Architect’s approval. The Architect’s approval shall not
be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor’s
construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review submittals. If the Contractor fails to
submit a submittal schedule, or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the
Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time
required for review of submittals.

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the
Owner and Architect.

§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site

The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders,
Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field
changes and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and
similar required submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, and
delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as
constructed.
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§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples

§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is
to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in
the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. Review
by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the Architect is not
expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by
the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the
Architect, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, in
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the
Owner or of Separate Contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal and
review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been
approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of
responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect
of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as a
minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the
deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product
Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the
absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities
for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to
provide professional services in violation of applicable law.

§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or
equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely upon
the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design professional,
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whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and
other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the Work, designed or
certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written approval when submitted to
the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the services,
certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect
have specified to the Contractor the performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this
Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the
limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Architect at the
time and in the form specified by the Architect.

§ 3.13 Use of Site

The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably
encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching

§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make
its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition existing
prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed
construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or by
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor except
with written consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to cutting or
otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 Cleaning Up

§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste
materials, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about
the Project.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the Owner
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.

§ 3.16 Access to Work
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever
located.

§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of
copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall
not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or
manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings,
Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a copyright or
patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the
information is promptly furnished to the Architect.

§ 3.18 Indemnification

§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner,
Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses,
and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work,
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provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent
acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for
whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a
party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or
obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor,
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts,
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT

§ 4.1 General

§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in
the Agreement.

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents
shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract

§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be
an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. The
Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed with
the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to
determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully
completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will not have
control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or
for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor’s rights and
responsibilities under the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the
Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor,
and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s
failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not
have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, or
their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.4 Communications

The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s
services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any direct
communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by and
with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and
suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the
Owner. The Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the
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Work in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed.
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise
such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers,
their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such
as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be taken
in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional judgment to
permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and
completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the
Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the
obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s approval of
a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes
in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and recommendations
regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of
final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the
Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to

Section 9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the
duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show
partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications
in response to the requests for information.

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 Definitions

§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the
Work at the site. The term "Subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number
and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term "Subcontractor" does not
include a Separate Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor.
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§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform
a portion of the Work at the site. The term "Sub-subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if
singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.

§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work

§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the
Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the persons or entities proposed for each principal portion of the
Work, including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design. Within 14 days of
receipt of the information, the Architect may notify the Contractor whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has
reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the
Architect to provide notice within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor
has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be
increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be
issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in
submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the Owner
or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations

By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the
Subcontractor’s Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect.
Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract
Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not
prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into
similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor,
prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will
be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the
proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly
make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.

§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that
A assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the
Subcontractor and Contractor; and
.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the
Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
obligations under the subcontract.

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.
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§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the
Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the
subcontract.

ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

§ 6.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts

§ 6.1.1 The term "Separate Contractor(s)" shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate
agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the
Owner’s own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to
those of this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of
subrogation.

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on
the site, the term "Contractor" in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each
separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each Separate
Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with any
Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any
revisions to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until
subsequently revised.

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations
related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate Contractors
shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, including,
without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12.

§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility

§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the
Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly
notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate
Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. Failure of the
Contractor to notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall
constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s completed or partially completed
construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible for
discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate Contractor
because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s delays, improperly
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially
completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14.
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§ 6.3 Owner’s Right to Clean Up

If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 7.1 General

§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor.
An order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order,
Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work.

§ 7.2 Change Orders
§ 7.21 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:

A The change in the Work;

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives

§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in
the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract
Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change
Order.

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be
based on one of the following methods:
1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to
permit evaluation;
.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or
percentage fee; or
4 Asprovided in Section 7.3.4.

§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum,
the Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing
the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead and
profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such
case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may
prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the
Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following:
A Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom,
workers’ compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect;
.2 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed,;
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.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor
or others;

4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly
related to the change; and

.5 Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the
Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any,
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time.

§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith,
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net
decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits
covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured
on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The
Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs and
certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be
reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as
a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work

The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and
do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order for
minor changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will affect the
Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to implement the
change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor change without
prior notice to the Architect that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any
adjustment to the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time.

ARTICLE 8 TIME

§ 8.1 Definitions

§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.
§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

§ 8.1.4 The term "day" as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
defined.
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§ 8.2 Progress and Completion
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement,
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence
the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner.

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion
within the Contract Time.

§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time

§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect
of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the Work;
(3) by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented
in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay authorized by the
Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the Contractor asserts, and the
Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the Architect
may determine.

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the
Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

§ 9.1 Contract Sum

§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values

Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a
schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the
various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to
substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as
a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be
submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and
unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications for
Payment.

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment

§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by all
data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner or Architect require, such as copies of
requisitions, and releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if
provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.
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§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others whom
the Contractor intends to pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such materials
and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage,
and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no
later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all
Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to
the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities that provided labor,
materials, and equipment relating to the Work.

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment

§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue
to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the
Contractor; or (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly
due, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in
Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner
of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based
on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount
certified. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract
Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor
deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect.
However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment;
or (4) made examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on
account of the Contract Sum.

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to
protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount,
the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such
representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently
discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as
may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible,
including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of
A defective Work not remedied;
.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;
.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials
or equipment;
4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;
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.5  damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor;

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in
whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously
withheld.

§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option,
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make
payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by
joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next Application
for Payment.

§ 9.6 Progress Payments
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner,
the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the
Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement
with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner.

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account
of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid
Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor
fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and suppliers
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay, or
to see to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be required by law.

§ 9.6.5 The Contractor’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2,
9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall be
held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both,
under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any fiduciary
liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of
punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and
litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of any
tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property against
which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted.
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§ 9.7 Failure of Payment

If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days
after the date established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the
Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and
the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and
start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion

§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof'is
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for
its intended use.

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not
included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall,
before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the
Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine
Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate
of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the
Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time
within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the
Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof
unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if any,
the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall be
adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use

§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to
by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use
may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have
accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance,
heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of
the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor considers a
portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided under
Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of
the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if no
agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
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§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment

§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect finds
the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly
issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, and
on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the
Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due
and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that conditions listed
in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment have been fulfilled.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to
the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with
the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld
by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract
Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the Contractor
knows of no reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract Documents,
(4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as manufacturers’
warranties or specific Subcontractor warranties, and (6) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or
satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a
Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance. If a lien,
claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to
the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging the lien, claim, security interest, or
encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If
the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract
Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment,
except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
A liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents;
3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or
4 audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment.

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of
claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of
final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs

The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the performance of the Contract.

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to
prevent damage, injury, or loss to

A employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;
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.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site,
under care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways,
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of
construction.

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their
protection from damage, injury, or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings
against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of
the safeguards.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under
supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by
any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under
Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the
extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to
the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the
Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise designated
by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or
create an unsafe condition.

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property

If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be
given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide
sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter.

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances

§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents
regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not
addressed in the Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily
injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the
condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons
or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to
perform the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect will
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the persons or entities
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proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable objection.
When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written
agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the
Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and
start-up.

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor,
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims,
damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or
death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
(other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence of
the party seeking indemnity.

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the
Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner
shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of
the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of
hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the
Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due
to the Owner’s fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 Emergencies

In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to
prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on
account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

§ 11.1 Contractor’s Insurance and Bonds

§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract
Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The
Owner, Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insureds under the Contractor’s
commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in the Contract Documents.

§ 11.1.2 The Contractor shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and
conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required bonds
from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of
obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a
copy to be furnished.

§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor’s Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the
date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by
the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation or
expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act
or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the
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procurement of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve
the Contractor of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage.

§ 11.2 Owner’s Insurance

§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract
Documents. The Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance
companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required
property insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement of the Work. Upon
receipt of notice from the Owner, the Contractor may delay commencement of the Work and may obtain insurance that
will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the Work. When the failure to
provide coverage has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be equitably adjusted. In the
event the Owner fails to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, Subcontractors, and
Sub-subcontractors to the extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance to have been
procured by the Owner. The cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change Order. If the Owner does
not provide written notice, and the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or
maintain the required insurance, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable costs and damages
attributable thereto.

§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner’s Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of
the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance
required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such impending or actual
cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Contractor: (1) the
Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has
been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; (2) the Contract Time
and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor,
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance
had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the insurance shall
be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner shall not relieve the
Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance.

§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation

§ 11.3.1 The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors,
sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, each of the other; (2) the Architect and Architect’s consultants; and (3)
Separate Contractors, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages
caused by fire, or other causes of loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required by the
Agreement or other property insurance applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such
insurance. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the individuals
and entities identified above from the Architect, Architect’s consultants, Separate Contractors, subcontractors, and
sub-subcontractors. The policies of insurance purchased and maintained by each person or entity agreeing to waive
claims pursuant to this section 11.3.1 shall not prohibit this waiver of subrogation. This waiver of subrogation shall be
effective as to a person or entity (1) even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification,
contractual or otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly,
or (3) whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the damaged property.

§ 11.3.2 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent
to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment
property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those insuring the
Project during the construction period, to the extent permissible by such policies, the Owner waives all rights in
accordance with the terms of Section 11.3.1 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate
property insurance.

§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance
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The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of
use of the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss. The
Owner waives all rights of action against the Contractor and Architect for loss of use of the Owner’s property, due to
fire or other hazards however caused.

§11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss

§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by the Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as
fiduciary and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to
requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Architect and
Contractor their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreements the Architect
and Contractor shall make payments to their consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Contractor of the terms of the proposed
settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Contractor shall have 14 days from receipt
of notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Contractor does not object, the
Owner shall settle the loss and the Contractor shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the Owner
shall deposit the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, if no
other agreement is made or the Owner does not terminate the Contract for convenience, the Owner and Contractor
shall execute a Change Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work in the amount allocated for that
purpose. If the Contractor timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or the allocation of the
proceeds, the Owner may proceed to settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and Contractor arising
out of the settlement or allocation of the proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. Pending resolution of any
dispute, the Owner may issue a Construction Change Directive for the reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed
Work.

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work

§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect’s
examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time.

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to
its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the
Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2 Correction of Work

§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion

The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the
Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed.
Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and
replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the
Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion

§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of Substantial
Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties established
under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the
Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it
promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a
written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition.
During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the Contractor
an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Contractor and to make
a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during
that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with

Section 2.5.
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§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual
completion of that portion of the Work.

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the
Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate
Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work that
is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the
Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be
sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor’s
liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.

§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work

If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 13.1 Governing Law

The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s
choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal
Arbitration Act shall govern Section 15.4.

§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns

§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in
Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other.
If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally
responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The
Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.

§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies

§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available
by law.

§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing.

§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections

§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and
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approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after
bids are received or negotiations concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or
approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.

§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, or
approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when
and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs,
except as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by
such failure, including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses, shall
be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.

§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 13.4.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 13.5 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate the
parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where
the Project is located.

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor

§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days through
no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons
or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons:

1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be
stopped;

.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all Work to be
stopped;

.3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of the
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not made
payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2.

§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a
Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work,
repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, constitute
in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any
365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’ notice
to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as
reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination.
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§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a
Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions
of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract Documents
with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice
to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 14.1.3.

§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor
A repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements
between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers;
3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful
orders of a public authority; or
4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon certification by the Architect that
sufficient cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the
Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ notice, terminate employment
of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:
A Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;
.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and
.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred
by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for
the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance,
the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case
may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall survive
termination of the Contract.

§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by
suspension, delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No
adjustment shall be made to the extent
A that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause
for which the Contractor is responsible; or
.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall
cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;
.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work;
and
3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice,
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and
purchase orders.
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§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work
properly executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of
Subcontracts; and the termination fee, if any, set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 15.1 Claims

§ 15.1.1 Definition

A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, a change in the
Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes
and matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility
to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require the Owner to
file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims

The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or
related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements
of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law,
but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and
Contractor waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2.

§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims

§ 15.1.3.1 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered
prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the
other party and to the Initial Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the
Initial Decision Maker. Claims by either party under this Section 15.1.3.1 shall be initiated within 21 days after
occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition
giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15.1.3.2 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered
after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the
other party. In such event, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker is required.

§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance

§ 15.1.4.1 Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and
Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to
make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 15.1.4.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted in accordance with the Initial Decision Maker’s
decision, subject to the right of either party to proceed in accordance with this Article 15. The Architect will issue
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decision of the Initial Decision Maker.

§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost

If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3
shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is not
required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.

§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time

§ 15.1.6.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in Section
15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on
progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.
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§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this
Contract. This mutual waiver includes
A damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing,
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such
persons; and
.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, except
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 15.2 Initial Decision

§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of the
period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 or arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, and 11.5, shall be
referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision
shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim. If an initial decision has not been rendered within
30 days after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker, the party asserting the Claim may demand
mediation and binding dispute resolution without a decision having been rendered. Unless the Initial Decision Maker
and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the Contractor and persons
or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more
of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting data
from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, or (5)
advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker lacks
sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial
Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim.

§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial Decision
Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of such
persons at the Owner’s expense.

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of the request, and shall either (1) provide a
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data
will be furnished, or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of
the response or supporting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in
part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on
the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute
resolution.

§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.

§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of receipt of an initial decision, demand in writing that the
other party file for mediation. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for mediation
within 30 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding dispute resolution
proceedings with respect to the initial decision.
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§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if any,
of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may,
but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§ 15.3 Mediation

§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding
dispute resolution.

§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing,
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The
request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event,
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties
or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the
selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 15.3.3 Either party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the
dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the
other party file for binding dispute resolution. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to
file for binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to binding
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.

§ 15.3.4 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4 Arbitration

§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any
Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place where the
Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing,
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party
filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which
arbitration is permitted to be demanded.

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of
legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly
consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.
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§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder

§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either
party may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party
provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to
be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially
similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either
party may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact whose
presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined
consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute
consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent.

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this
Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the Owner
and Contractor under this Agreement.

AIA Document A201 — 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights
reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The
American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 11:29:10 ET on 02/27/2026 under Order No.4104248632 which expires on 12/31/2026, is not for
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations,
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West Plains Wholesale Grocery - Provalus

02/19/2026 @ 2:00pm

Unit Price #1 Unit Price #2 Bidder's =
(Replacement of damaged  (Replacement of damaged ~ Unit Price #3 (Brick Qualification Certificate of
Company Subdivision 1 Subdivision 2 wood floor deck) wood roof deck) masonry repair) Addenda (1-3) Statement Lobbying E-Verify
SBI Construction 2,703,679.00 2,462,933.00 | $ 796] S 5.31 $50/SF 1-3 X X X
Killian Construction 3,183,000.00 2,364,000.00 | $ 6.60] S 6.60 $38.68 X X
John Adams Construction 3,143,589.54 2,577,353.86 | $ 120.00 | $ 175.00 $35 X X




West Plains Wholesale Grocery Building Renovation - Provalus

Breakdown & Schedule of Values, 02/20/26

Description Value Totals
Subdivision 1: Renovations to the first floor $ 2,703,679
01 Bond S 20,889.32
01 Contingency S 52,232.62
01 Final Cleaning S 7,608.20
01 General Conditions S 159,481.58
01 Insurance S 6,474.23
01 Temp Utilities S 4,023.00
02 Asbestos Abatement S 4,909.87
02 Demolition S 52,333.95
03 Concrete S 10,446.52
04 Masonry S 11,245.68
05 Steel $ 106,035.34
06 Installations S 6,845.23
06 Millwork S 26,698.18
06 Wood Framing S 43,562.00
06 Wood Material S 62,024.66
07 Roofing S 118,594.16
07 Spray Foam Insulation S 6,309.70
07 Waterproofing Caulking & Sealants S 9,537.68
08 Doors, Frames & Hardware S 19,743.93
08 Glass S 196,551.33
09 Drywall S 164,514.46
09 Floorcovering S 91,606.61
09 Painting & Wallcovering $ 58,235.04
10 Specialties S 17,795.13
12 Window Treatment S 12,745.80
14 Elevators S 73,543.52
15 Fire Protection S 50,665.64
15 HVAC S 689,888.40
15 Plumbing S 94,721.76

16 Electrical S 524,415.47




Description

Subdivision 2: Renovations to the second floor (AND BASEMENT)

Value

Totals
$ 2,462,933

01 Bond S 19,028.42
01 Contingency S 52,232.62
01 Final Cleaning S 7,608.20
01 General Conditions S 159,481.58
01 Insurance S 6,474.23
01 Temp Utilities S 4,023.00
02 Demolition S 75,690.28
02 Fencing S 34,766.03
03 Concrete S 240,761.02
04 Masonry S 5,139.69
05 Steel S 13,938.80
06 Installations S 6,243.45
06 Millwork S 9,133.40
06 Wood Framing S 37,398.55
06 Wood Material S 62,024.66
07 Roofing S 268,436.47
07 Spray Foam Insulation S 626.79
07 Waterproofing Caulking & Sealants S 11,386.71
08 Doors, Frames & Hardware S 13,789.41
08 Glass S 67,902.40
09 Drywall S 122,085.91
09 Floorcovering S 64,528.17
09 Painting & Wallcovering S 59,963.19
10 Specialties S 17,275.94
12 Window Treatment S 6,707.71
14 Elevators S 73,543.52
15 Fire Protection S 76,781.95

15 HVAC

$ 402,191.15

15 Plumbing

$ 176,052.12

16 Electrical

$ 367,717.62

Total $ 5,166,612
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TO:

City of West Plains Finance
1910 Holiday Lane

West Plains, MO 65775

PROJECT:

West Plains Wholesale Grocery Building Renovation - Provalus

601 Washington Ave.

West Plains, MO 65775

DATE: February 19,2026

The undersigned as Bidder, having examined the Bid Documents dated November 20, 2025 for the above referenced
project including this Bid Form, Project Manual, Drawings and Addenda Nos 1 through and having visited the
site of the proposed construction and examined the conditions affecting the Work, includes all their provisions in this
bid.

IN SUBMITTING THIS BID, THE BIDDER AGREES:

To hold open the bid for sixty (60) days from receipt of bids.

To accept and accomplish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, including Specifications, Drawing and
Addenda.

To enter into and execute a Contract, if awarded on the basis of this bid, and to furnish the required Bonds.
To provide a Bid Bond in the amount of 5 percent (5%) of this bid.

To delete all sales tax from materials to be purchased and consumed for this project as specified in the Missouri Project
Exemption Certificate.

To commence construction of the Work immediately after receipt of the Notice to Proceed and to be substantially
complete by Tuesday, January 12 2027.

To furnish a statement of Bidders Qualifications along with this Bid Form. Do not provide a financial statement.
To complete this Bid Form in its entirety, accepting that failure to do so may result in the rejection of this bid.
To provide a contingency allowance of $100,000.00. The contingency not used will be credited to the Qwner.
To provide a signed Certificate Regarding Lobbying.

(pemimn) Avoon

To construct the Work of the base bid for the lump sum of

B vrillon onshunded siviy S'XM&LM 5.2, Vb, (ol .00
ST hawndved and ’nuuelv-& oLoles

In order to comply with grant funding requirements, the base bid amount above will be sudivided into categories listed
below.

Subdivision 1: Renovations to the first floor.

Two Miltan 5000 b dred wc Hiver Wiousad s) 2,703, (79 .00

ST Wwamdped soventynine  dolars
BID FORM 00110 1




West Plains Wholesale Grocery - Provalus 1/29/2026
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Subdivsion 2: Renovations to the second ﬂcerAADD#‘I
Two milljon fow hundred 5!&# Hwo ) wSand  ($) 52 /-I(o;l qgg ©O

nine hundied m««i%;r{j el deo(lars

Unit Prices:

One: Removal and replacement of rotted/ damaged wood floor deck. Replace wood floor deck per structural
drawings.

$7'7%/ Square Foot

Two: Removal and replacement of rotted/ damaged wood roof deck. Replace wood deck per structural drawings.

$ 5' ?)! / Square Foot

Three: Brick tuckpointing.

$M Square Foot

Bidder: Springfield Builders, Inc.

Name of firm (indr'vr'?\ucf partnership, corporation)
Signature: 10Ny Hopkins @%k(‘;ﬁ\‘b Vice-President

Name Title

Address: 619 N. Jefferson Ave,

Street
Springfield MO 65806
City State Zip

SEAL
(If Applicable)

END OF BID FORM

BID FORM 000110- 2
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THE PARTIES SHOULD EXECUTE A SEPARATE CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT IF THEY
INTEND FOR ANY OF THE INFORMATION IN THIS A305-2020 TO BE HELD CONFIDENTIAL.

SUBMITTED BY: SUBMITTED TO:

(Organization name and address.) (Organization name and address.)
Springfield Builders, Inc. The City of West Plains

619 N. Jefferson Ave. 1910 Holiday Lane

Springfield MO 65806 West Plains, MO 65775

TYPE OF WORK TYPICALLY PERFORMED

(Indicate the type of work your organization typically performs, such as general
contracting, construction manager as constructor services, HVAC contracting, electrical
contracting, plumbing contracting, or other.)

General Contracting

THIS CONTRACTOR’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING:
(Check all that apply.)

[X ] Exhibit A — General Information

[X ] Exhibit B — Financial and Performance Information

[X ] Exhibit C — Project-Specific Information

[X ] Exhibit D — Past Project Experience

[X ] Exhibit E — Past Project Experience (Continued)
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies under oath that the information provided in this Contractor’s
ualiff€atjon Statement is true and sufficiently complete so as not to be misleading.

2/19/26
Date

Organizéation’s Authorized Representative
Signature

Tony Hopkins, Vice-President
Printed Name and Title

NOTARY

State of: Missouri

County of: Greene

Signed and swormn to before me this 19th day of February 2026

' jJJ\/\,@\I 0o

Ndtary Signature.)

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and should be reviewed. A
vertical line in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
has added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

My commission expires: W\@,\/) \D ?,O?.’\

LORI HUGHES
Notary Public — No

Greene Coun

i Sea
| STATE OF MISSQURI
i

My Commission Expires Mlz 10, 2027
~ Commission #151 9

AlA Document A305 — 2020. Copyright © 1964, 1969, 1979, 1986, and 2020. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” "American Institute of
Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 09:56:15 1
ET on 02/17/2026 under Order No.500031177 which expires on 02/17/2027, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance

with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (1450847066)



General Information

This Exhibit is part of the Contractor’s Qualification Statement, submitted by Springfield
Builders, Inc. and dated the 19th day of February in the year 2026
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

§ A.1 ORGANIZATION
§ A1.1Name and Location
§ A.1.1.1 Identify the full legal name of your organization.

Springfield Builders, Inc.

§ A.1.1.2 List all other names under which your organization currently does business and,
for each name, identify jurisdictions in which it is registered to do business under that trade
name.

N/A

§ A.1.1.3 List all prior names under which your organization has operated and, for each
name, indicate the date range and jurisdiction in which it was used.

N/A

§ A.1.1.4 Identify the address of your organization’s principal place of business and list all
office locations out of which your organization conducts business. If your organization has
multiple offices, you may attach an exhibit or refer to a website.

619 N. Jefferson Ave., Springfield MO 65806

§ A.1.2 Legal Status

§ A.1.2.1 Identify the legal status under which your organization does business, such as
sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability corporation, joint venture, or
other.

Corporation

.1 If your organization is a corporation, identify the state in which it is
incorporated, the date of incorporation, and its four highest-ranking
corporate officers and their titles, as applicable.

State of Incorporation: Missouri
Date of Incorporation: June 1990
Officers: Kirk Looney, President; Tony Hopkins, Vice-President

.2 If your organization is a partnership, identify its partners and its date of
organization.

.3 Ifyour organization is individually owned, identify its owner and date of
organization.
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4 Ifthe form of your organization is other than those listed above, describe it and identify its individual
leaders:

§ A1.2.2 Does your organization own, in whole or in part, any other construction-related businesses? If so, identify
and describe those businesses and specify percentage of ownership.

N/A

§ A.1.3 Other Information
§ A.1.3.1 How many years has your organization been in business?

35
§ A1.3.2 How many full-time employees work for your organizalion?
25

§ A.1.3.3 List your North American Industry Clagsification System (NAICS) codes and titles. Specify which is your
- primary NAICS code.

236116, 236210, 236220
§ A.1.3.4 Indicate whether your organization is certified as a governmentally recognized special business class, such
as a minority business enterprise, woman business enterprise, service disabled veteran owned small business, worman
owned small business, small business in a HUBZone, or a small disadvantaged business in the 8(a) Business
Development Program. For each, identify the certifying authority and indicate jurisdictions to which such certification
applies,
N/A
§ A2 EXPERIENCE
§ A.21 Compilete Exhibit D to describe up to four projects, either completed or in progress, that are representative of
your organization’s experience and capabilities,
§ A.2.2 State your organization’s total dollar value of work currently under contract.
$19,375,382

§ A.2.3 Of the amount stated in Section A.2.2, state the dollar value of work that remains to be completed:

$9,316,120

§ A.2.4 State your organization’s average annual dollar value of construction work performed during the last five
years.

$17,341,499 ($12,785,446 to $33,548,476)

§ A3 CAPABILITIES
§ A.3.1 List the categories of work that your organization typically self-performs,

General Conditions, Rough Carpentry, Finish Carpentry, Installations
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§ A.3.2 Identify qualities, accreditations, services, skills, or personnel that you believe differentiate your organization
from others.

SBI is a very experienced General Contractor and Construction Manager, with an excellent reputation for consistently
delivering on quality, value, and schedule. We always do so with integrity as our overarching priority. SBI has highly
skilled and experienced personnel at every key position to serve you. Our project portfolio consists of thousands of
projects, and we endeavor to earn every client’s testimony from the project onset to completion. While this is a small
space for a broad opportunity to present our qualifications, we would look forward to substantiating any requested
information about our experience and reputation.

§ A.3.3 Does your organization provide design collaboration or pre-construction services? If so, describe those
services.

SBI frequently partners with design firms for negotiated project delivery, and we offer extensive Pre-Construction
services. Tony Hopkins, our Vice-President, is one of the most experienced Pre-Construction professionals in the
region, and he will personally be assigned as your project’s Estimator.

§ A.3.4 Does your organization use building information modeling (BIM)? If so, describe how your organization uses
BIM and identify BIM software that your organization regularly uses.

We do not self-perform BIM services. These do not appear to be applicable to this project, but if required, we would
seck industry partners to perform such services.

§ A.3.5 Does your organization use a project management information system? If so, identify that system.

SBI utilizes a number of technology platforms on a daily basis. Our internal Accounting and Project Management
software is Timberline. Our Estimating software is WinEst. Our scheduling software is Microsoft Project. We utilize
Microsoft CRM database for relational management. We also plan to deploy Submittal Exchange, as specified in the
Project Manual.

§ A4 REFERENCES
§ A.4.1 Identify three client references:
(Insert name, organization, and contact information)

CASA of Southwest Missouri, Laura Farmer, Executive Director, (417) 864-6202, Ifarmer@CASAswmo.org
O’Reilly Auto Parts, Chris Evans, Director of Construction, (417) 829-5703, Chris Evans, cevans16@oreillyauto.com
Jordan Valley Community Health, Matt Seebauer, Executive Director of Facilities, (417) 766-0904,
matt.seebauer@jordanvalley.org

§ A.4.2 Identify three architect references:
(Insert name, organization, and contact information)

Sapp Design Associates Architect PC, Kathe Kristek, (417) 877-9600, kristek@sdaarchitects.com
Hood Rich Architects, Josh Livingston, (417) 862-4483, jlivingston@hoodrich.com
Ball Architects PC, Chris Ball, (417) 299-3450, cball@jbapc.com

§ A.4.3 Identify one bank reference:
(Insert name, organization, and contact information)

Guaranty Bank, Heather Ramsey, (417) 851-5711, hramsey@gbankmo.com

§ A.4.4 Identify three subcontractor or other trade references:
(Insert name, organization, and contact information)

HBC LLC, Brian Hill, (417) 880-6988, brian@hbcinc.us
KS Wood Products, Justin Sutherland, (417) 833-1056, justin@kswoodproducts.com
Swearengin Enterprises, LLC, Seth Thompson, (417) 880-7241, sethdmore@gmail.com
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Financial and Performance Information

This Exhibit is part of the Contractor’s Qualification Statement, submitted by and dated
the Springfield Builders, Inc. day of 19th in the year 2026

(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

§ B.1 FINANCIAL
§ B.1.1 Federal tax identification number:

43-1550325

§ B.1.2 Attach financial statements for the last three years prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, including your organization’s latest balance
sheet and income statement. Also, indicate the name and contact information of the firm
that prepared each financial statement.

See attached, 3 Financial Statements.
CPA Firm: RMMC, 4035 S. Fremont, Springfield MO 65804
Jeff Keeling, jk@rmmec-cpa.com, (417) 883-5348

§ B.1.3 Has your organization, its parent, or a subsidiary, affiliate, or other entity having
common ownership or management, been the subject of any bankruptcy proceeding within
the last ten years?

No.

§ B.1.4 Identify your organization’s preferred credit rating agency and identification
information.

(Identify rating agency, such as Dun and Bradstreet or Equifax, and insert your
organization’s identification number or other method of searching your organization’s
credit rating with such agency.)

We do no subscribe to or pay for Dun & Bradstreet’s services, but our credit ratings can be
obtained through Equifax, Transunion, and Experian.

§ B.2 DISPUTES AND DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

§ B.2.1 Are there any pending or outstanding judgments, arbitration proceedings, bond
claims, or lawsuits against your organization, its parent, or a subsidiary, affiliate, or other
entity having common ownership or management, or any of the individuals listed in
Exhibit A, Section 1.2, in which the amount in dispute is more than $75,000?

(If the answer is yes, provide an explanation.)

No.

§ B.2.2 In the last five years has your organization, its parent, or a subsidiary, affiliate, or
other entity having common ownership or management:

(If the answer to any of the questions below is yes, provide an explanation.)

A failed to complete work awarded to it?

No.
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2 Dbeen terminated for any reason except for an owners’ convenience?
No.

.3 had any judgments, settlements, or awards pertaining to a construction project in which your
organization was responsible for more than $75,0007

No.
4 filed any lawsuits or requested arbitration regarding a construction project?
No.
8§ B.2.3 In the last five years, has your organization, its parent, or a subsidiary, affiliate, or other entity having common
ownership or management; or any of the individuals listed in Exhibit A Section 1.2:
(If the answer to any of the questions below is yes, provide an explanation.)
A been convicied of, or indicted for, a business-related crime?
No.
.2 had any business or professional license subjected to disciplinary action?
No.
3 been penalized or fined by a state or federal environmental agency?

No.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC,

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 627,807
Coniracts receivable 1,287,874
Retention receivable _ 492,574
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted eontracts 60,685
Other receivables 8,364
Prepaid expenses . 27,158
Total current assets ' 2,504.462
Property and equipment, at cost: ‘ :

Office equipment - ' - 100,618
Transportation equipment 225,849
Computer equipment 54,201
Construction equipment . 242,195
Leasehold imiprovements 307.394
o ' 930,257

Less accumulated depreciation (648,291)
281.966

5786498



LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Aecounts payable $ 1,018,498
Retention payable 637,997
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts 132,815
Payroll liabilities 14,339
Current portion of long-term debi 10.479
Total current liabilities , _1.814,128
Long-term liability:
Long-term debt . 7.313

" Stockholders® equity:
Conunon stock; $1 per value, 30,000 Shares
Authorized, 12,000 Shares Issued, 4,000

Shares Outstanding 12,000
Additional paid in capital 15,555
Retained earnings . , 991.432

1,018,987
Less Treasury Stock; 8,000 Shares at cost (54.000)
Total Stockholders’ Equity , 964.987
b 2.786.42

See Independent Accountants’ Review Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND RETAINED EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Construction revenue

Direct cost of construction
Indirect cost of construction

Total cost of construction
Gross profit
General and administrative expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expe:nsej:
Interest income

Interest expense
Miscellaneous income

Net loss
Retained éarnings, beginning of year
Distributions

Retained earnings, end of year

(Unaudited)

$12.785.44
(11,792,705)

- (61.762)

(11,854.467)
930,979

(1.071.863)

(140,884)
4,194

(1,180)
26,152

29.166
(111,718)
1,410,975
(307.825)
$__ 991432

See Independent Accountants’” Review Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
~ Net Ioss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Retention receivable
Costs in excess of billings and estimated earnings on
uncompleted confracts
Prepaid expense
Other receivables
Inerease (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and retention payable
Payroll liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on
. uncompleted contracts

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment

Cash flows from financing activities:
Shareholder distributions
Long-term debt repayments
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

$ (111,718)

34,878

1,339,728
293,764

91,786
(11,783)
153,520

(1,300,447)
4,225

(338,267)
155,686

(11.3195)

(307,825)
(9.934)

(317.759)
(173,388)
801,195

$ 627,807

$ 1,180

See Independent Accountants’ Review Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retention payable
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
an uncompleted contracts
Payroll Habilities
Current portion long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term liability:
Long-term debt

Stockholders' equity:

Common stock; $1 par value, 30,000 Shares
Authorized, 12,000 Shares Issued, 4,000
Shares Outstanding

Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings

Less Treasury Stock; 8,000 Shares at cost

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022,
1,103,829 $ 1,018,498
701,626 637,997
336,457 132,815
18,491 14,339
7,432 10,479
2,167,835 1,814,128
- 7,313
12,000 12,000
15,555 15,555
1,872,803 991,432
1,900,358 1,018,987
(54,000) (54,000)
1,846,358 964,987
4,014,193 S 2,786,428

See Independent Accountants' Review Report and notes to the financial statements.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(Unaudited)
Year ended December 31,
2023 2022

Construction revenue $ 14,889,890 $ 12,785,446
Cost of construction:

Direct cost of construction 12,542,841 11,792,705

Indirect cost of construction 28,799 61,762
Total cost of construction : 12,571,640 11,854,467
Gross profit 2,318,250 930,979
General and administrative expenses 1,079,467 1,071,529
Income (loss) from operations ' 1,238,783 {140,550)
Other income (expense):

Gain on sale of property and equipment 31,000 -

Interest income 13,784 4,194

Interest expense (700) (1,180)

Penalties - (334)

Miscellaneous income 32,456 26,152

76,540 28,832

Net income (loss) 1,315,323 (111,718)
Retained earnings, beginning of year 991,432 1,410,975
Distributions to sharcholders (433,952) (307,825)
Retained earnings, end of year $ 1,872,803 $ 991,432

See Independent Accountants' Review Report and notes to the financial statements,

4



SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities;
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation -
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Retention receivable
Costs in excess of billings and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts
Prepaid expense
Other receivables
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts and retention payable
Payroll liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts

Net cash pravided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:

Sale of property and equipment

Proceeds-from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

$

1,315,324

31,882

(40,562)
(373,106)

38,579
1,906
(5,679)

148,958
4,150

203,642

1,325,094

{31,000
31,000

(6,775)




SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)
{Unaudited)
Year ended December 31,
- 2023 2022
Cash flows from financing activities:
Sharcholder distributions $ (433,952) b (307,825)
Long-term debt repayments (10,360} (9,934)
Net cash used in financing activities (444,312) (317,759)
Net increase (decrease) in cash . 874,007 (173,388)
Cash, beginning of year 627,807 801,195
Cash, end of year ' $ 1,501,814 $ 627,807
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information;
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 700 5 1,180




SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Year ended December 31,
2024 2023
Current assets:
Cash $ 1,007,732 $ 1,501,814
Contracts receivable 2,357,296 1,328,436
Retention receivable 597,891 865,681
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on completed contracts 196,890 22,106
Other receivables 14,018 14,043
Prepaid expenses 31,729 25,254
Total current assets 4,205,556 3,757,334
Property and equipment, at cost:

Office equipment 106,512 106,512
Transportation equipment 328,820 225,849
Computer equipment 55,082 55,082
Construction equipment 183,963 183,963
Leasehold improvements 307,394 307,394
981,771 878,800

Less accumulated depreciation (650,813) (621,941
330,958 256,859

$ 4,536,514 $ 4,014,193




LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retention payable
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts
Payroll liabilities
Current portion long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term liability:
Long-term debt

Stockholders' equity:

Common stock; $1 par value, 30,000 Shares
Authorized, 12,000 Shares Issued, 4,000
Shares Outstanding

Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings

Less Treasury Stock; 8,000 Shares at cost

Year ended December 31,

2024 2023

1,959,941 1,103,829
634,465 701,626
318,517 336,457
2,757 18,491
26,852 7,432
2,942,532, 2,167,835
65,030 -
12,000 12,000
15,555 15,555
1,555,397 1,872,803
1,582,952 1,900,358
(54,000) (34,000)
1,528,952 1,846,358
4,536,514 4,014,193

See Independent Accountants’ Review Report and notes to the financial statements.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Construction revenue

Cost of construction:
Direct cost of construction
Indirect cost of construction

Total cost of construction

Gross profit
General and administrative expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Other income (expense):
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Interest income

Interest expense
Miscellaneous income

Net income (loss)
Retained earnings, beginning of year
Distributions to shareholders

Retained earnings, end of year

(Unaudited}
Year ended December 31,
2024 2023
§ 12,032,754 $§ 14,889,890
10,496,869 12,542,841
33,339 28,799
10,530,208 12,571,640
1,502,546 2,318,250
1,176,334 1,079,467
326,212 1,238,783
- 31,000
41,584 13,784
(134) (700)
3,025 32,456
44,475 76,540
370,687 1,315,323
1,872,801 991,432
(688,091) (433,952)
$ 1,555,397 $ 1,872,803

See Independent Accountants' Review Report and notes to the financial statements.
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SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Retention receivable
Costs in excess of billings and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts
Prepaid expense
Other Receivables
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retention payable
Payroll liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Year ended December 31,

2024 2023
370,687 $ 1,315,323
- (31,000)
28,872 31,882
(1,028,860) (40,562)
267,790 (373,107)
(174,784) 38,579
(6,475) 1,904
25 (5,679)
856,112 85,331
(67,161) 63,629
(15,734) 4,152
(17,940) 203,642
212,532 1,294,094
- 31,000
(11,091) (6,775)
(11,091) 24,225




SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)
(Unaudited)
Year ended December 31,
2024 2023
Cash flows from financing activities:
Shareholder distributions $ (688,091) $ (433,952)
Long-term debt repayments (7,432) {10,360)
Net cash used in financing activities (695,523) (444,312)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (494,082) 874,007
Cash, beginning of year 1,501,814 627,807
Cash, end of year $ 1,007,732 § 1,501,814
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for: _
Interest $ 134 $ 700
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and
financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment through
issuance of long-term debt: $ 91,882 $ .
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Project Specific Information

This Exhibit is part of the Contractor’s Qualification Statement, submitted by Springfield
Builders, Inc. and dated the 19th day of February in the year 2026
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

PROJECT:
(Name and location or address.)

West Plains Wholesale Grocery Building Renovation
601 Washington Ave.
West Plains, MO

CONTRACTOR’S PROJECT OFFICE:
(Identify the office out of which the contractor proposes to perform the work for the
Project.)

Springfield Builders, Inc.
619 N. Jefferson Ave.
Springfield MO 65806

TYPE OF WORK SOUGHT

(Indicate the type of work you are seeking for this Project, such as general contracting,
construction manager as constructor, design-build, HVAC subcontracting, electrical
subcontracting, plumbing subcontracting, etc.)

General Contracting

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Describe any conflict of interest your organization, its parent, or a subsidiary, affiliate, or
other entity having common ownership or management, or any of the individuals listed in
Exhibit A Section 1.2, may have regarding this Project.

N/A

§ C.1 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK
§ C.1.1 When was the Contractor’s Project Office established?

June, 1990

§ C.1.2 How many full-time field and office staff are respectively employed at the
Contractor’s Project Office?

+/- 25

§ C.1.3 List the business license and contractor license or registration numbers for the
Contractor’s Project Office that pertain to the Project.

Missouri Charter #00341480 (State Licensure is not applicable in Missouri, but we are
licensed in numerous other states and local jurisdictions.). City of West Plains business
license is not applicable, according to City Clerk. City of Springfield Business License:
#BUS-0020399
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§ C.1.4 Identify key personnel from your organization who will be meaningfully involved with work on this Project and
indicate (1) their position on the Project team, (2) their office location, (3) their expertise and experience, and (4)
projects similar to the Project on which they have worled.

See attached Exhibit C.1.4

§ C.1.5 Identify portions of work that you intend to self-perform on this Project.

General Conditions, Supervision, Finish Carpentry, Installations

§ C.1.6 To the extent known, list the subcontractors you intend to use for major portions of work on the Project.

Subcontractors are not yet known, but will be provided upon subsequent bidding processes. SBI maintains excellent
matket relationships with industry trade partners.

§ C.2 EXPERIENCE RELATED TO THE PROJECT

§ €.2.1 Complete Exhibit D to describe up to four projects performed by the Contractor’s Project Office, either
completed or in progress, that are relevant to this Project, such as projects in a similar geographic area or of similar
project type, If you have already completed Exhibit D, but want to provide further examples of projects that are relevant
to this Project, you may complete Exhibit E.

§ C.2.2 State the total dollar value of work currently under contract at the Contractor’s Project Office:
$19,375,382

§ C.2.3 Of the amount stated in Section C.2.2, state the dollar value of work that remains to be completed:
$9,316,120

§ C.2.4 State the average annual dollar value of construction work performed by the Contractor’s Project Office during
the last five years,

$17,341,499 ($12,785,446 to $33,548,476)

§ C.2.5 List the total number of projects the Contractor’s Project Office has completed in the last five years and state the
dollar value of the largest contract the Contractor’s Project Office has completed during that time.

156 Projects completed in 5 years. Largest in that span was $4,340,050. Several larger projects completed prior to this
time.

§ C.3 SAFETY PROGRAM AND RECORD
§ €.3.1 Does the Contractor’s Project Office have a written safety program?

Yes,
§ C.3.2 List all safety-related citations and penalties the Contractor’s Project Office has received in the last three years.
None.

§ C.3.3 Attach the Contractor’s Project Office’s OSHA 300a Summary of Work-Related Injuries and Illnesses form for
the last three years.

§ C.3.4 Attach a copy of your insurance agent’s verification letter for your organization’s current workers’
compensation experience modification rate and rates for the last three years.

AlA Document A308 — 2020 Exnibli C, Copyright @ 2020. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Archilects,” "American Institute of Architects,” "AIA,” the AIA
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§ C.4INSURANCE

§ C.4.1 Attach current certificates of insurance for your commercial general liability policy, umbrella insurance policy,
and professional liability insurance policy, if any. Identify deductibles or self-insured retentions for your commercial
general liability policy.

§ C.A.2If requested, will your organization be able to provide property insurance for the Project written on a builder’s
risk "all-risks" completed value or equivalent policy form and sufficient to cover the total value of the entire Project on
a replacement cost basis?

Yes.

§ C.A4.3 Does your commercial general liability policy contain any exclusions or restrictions of coverage that are
prohibited in AIA Document A101-2017, Exhibit A, Insurance A.3.2.2.27 If so, identify.

No.

§ C.5 SURETY
§ C.5.1 If requested, will your organization be able to provide a performance and payment bond for this Project?

Yes.

§ C.5.2 Surety company name:

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company

§ C.5.3 Surety agent name and contact information:
Ryan Thayer, Account Excoutive

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company

7465 W. 132nd St.

Ovetland Park XS 66216

(913) 402-5461

§ €.5.4 Total bonding capacity:

mote than $20,000,000

§ C.5.5 Available bonding capacity as of the date of this qualification statement:

more than $14,000,000
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ERE
SPRINGFIELD BUILDERS INCORPORATED

Integrity with Structurs’

C.1.4 Key Personnel

Tony Hopkins, Vice-President (Your Project Estimator & Pre-Construction Executive)

Tony Hopkins has worked in estimating and pre-construction for
commercial construction for 27 years. His successfully
completed project experience ranges from small interior
remodels to projects over $120 million in size. Education,
experience, and core values have established a proven record of
successful business, but his personal nature provides tangible
quality and value to a project. Among these distinct traits are
organization, conscientiousness, software and mathematical
skill, negotiating manner, and procedure. The combination of
these traits and experience constitutes a very rare expertise in
the forum of Pre-Construction management.

Tony demonstrates sound abilities in leadership through all phases of project negotiation, as
well as competitive bidding endeavors. His earnest accountability and performance are
extremely valuable to clients, and his ambitious nature provides an exceptional platform for
success in construction. Importantly, he devotes his personal time volunteering and
advocating for children in his community.

e Member at Northside Christian Church.

e Graduate of Missouri State University.

e Graduate of Marionville High School.

e  Alumnus of the Springfield Business Journal's "40 Under 40".

e Volunteer for Lifeline Christian Mission’s meal packing for Haiti.

e Volunteer and advocate for children:
o Past President of the Board of Directors for CASA of Southwest Missouri: 6 year

volunteer in the roles of Board Member, Secretary, Vice-President, President.

o Past member of the Young Advocates Council for Child Advocacy Center. Burgers &

Cheers sponsor and volunteer for 8 years.

Past Ozarks Food Harvest weekend backpack program volunteer.

Past Ozarks Food Harvest “notes of encouragement” program volunteer.

Past Bridges for Youth (Madison Street) playground construction volunteer.

Past Willard South Elementary backpack program volunteer.

Past Northside Christian Church children’s toddler care volunteer.

Past Northside Christian Church children’s check-in security volunteer.

o O 0O o0 O O

“Integrity with Structure”
619 Narth Jefferson
Springfield, MO 65806
Office 417-865-6200
Fax 417-865-6402
www.springfieldbuilders.com



Exhibit C.3.3 - OSHA 300a

OSHA's Form 300A Year 2023 @
Summary of Work-Related Injuries and llinesses PO bk

Form approved OMB no. 1218-0176

All establishments covered by Part 1904 must complete this Summary page, even if no injuries or
ilinesses occurred during the year. Remember o review the Log fo verify thal the entries are complete

Using the Log, count the individual entries you made for each calegory. Then wrile the totals below, Establishment information
making sure you've added the entries from every page of the log. If you had no cases wrile *0."
Employees former employees, and their representatives have the right to review the OSHA Form 300 in Your establishment name  Springfield Builders, Inc
its entirely. They also have limited access to the OSHA Form 301 or its equivalent. See 29 CFR
1904.35, in OSHA's Recordkeeping rule, for further details on the access provisions for these forms. Street 619 N Jefferson Ave
i i State M Zi 65806
Number of Cases City  Springfield 0 P

Industry description {e.g., Manufacture of motor truck trailers)

Total number of Total number of  Total number of cases Total number of General Contractor
deaths cases with days  with job transfer or other recordable
away from wark  restriction cases Standard Industrial Classification (SIC), if known (e.g., SIC 3715)

0 0 0 0 -

(G) (H) (3] (J)
Number of Days Employment information
Total number of Total number of days
days of job transfer away from work Annual average number of employees 19
or restriction

11 0 Total hours worked by all employees last year 36090

(K} (L)

Injury and lliness Types

Sign here

Total number of... Knowingly falsifying this document may result in a fine.
(M)
(1) Injury 1 (4) Poisoning 0
(2) Skin Disorder 0 (5) All other illr 0
@) m.m.mu_mmyo_.« | certify that | have examined this document and that to lhe best of my knowledge the entries
Condition 0 are lrue, acgurate, and complete. )
7
R \D’ %\ Corp. Sec
r\ OOBu.Q@.mwa.._&m Title

417-865-6200 1312023

Post this Summary page from February 1 to April 30 of the year following the year covered by the form Phone Date

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 50 minutes per response, including time to review the instruction, search and
gather the data needed, and complete and review the collection of information. Persons are not required to respand lo the collection of information unless it
displays a currenlly valid OMB control number. 1f you have any comments about these estimates or any aspects of this dala collection, contact: US

Deoartment of Labor. OSHA Office of Statistics. Room N-3544, 200 Constitution Ave. MW, Washinaton, DC 20210. Do not send the comoleted forms (o this



OSHA's Form 300A T—
m:ESmQ 9ﬂ <<o_.x mm_mﬁmo_ _:_::mm m:n_ ___=mmmmm U-5. Department of Labor

Onn:uu:a nal wln:. and Health Administration

mn:.: muuﬁaqmu oM no. um._m c:.m

Afl establishments covered by Part 1904 must complete this Summary page, even if no injuries or
illnesses occurred during the year Remember lo review the Log to verify that the entries are complete

Using the Log, count the individual entries you made for each category. Then write the totals below,
making sure you've added the enlries from every page of the log. If you had no cases wrife "0."

Employees former employees, and their representatives have the right to review the OSHA Form 300 in
its entirely. They also have jimiled access lo the OSHA Form 301 or its equivalent. See 29 CFR
1904.35, in OSHA's Recordkeeping rule, for further details on the access provisions for these forms,

Number of Cases

Total number of Total number of  Total number of cases Total number of

deaths cases with days  with job transfer or other recordable
away from work  restriction cases
0 0 0 0
(G) (H) (1 (J)
Number of Days
Total number of Total number of days
days of job transfer away from work
or restriction
45 0
(K) L
Injury and lliness Types
Total number of...
(M)
(1) Injury 1 (4) Poisoning 1]
(2) Skin Disorder 0 (5) All otherillnesses 0
(3) Respiratory
Condition 0

Post this Summary page from February 1 to April 30 of the year following the year covered by the form

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 50 minutes per response, including time to review (he instruction, search and
gather lhe data needed, and complete and review the collection of informalion. Persons are not required to respond to the collection of information unless it
displays a currenlly valid OMB control number. If you have any comments about these estimates or any aspecls of this data collection, contact: US

Department of Labor. OSHA Office of Stalistics. Room N-3644. 200 Constilution Ave. NW. s_mm:_:n_nn DC 20210, Do not send the comoleted forms o this

Establishment information

Your establishment name  Springfield Builders, Inc

Street 619 N Jefferson Ave

City  Springfield State MO Zi|

D 65806

Industry descriplion {e.g., Manufacture of motor truck trailers)
General Contractor

Standard Industria! Classification (SIC), if known (e.g., SIC 3715)

Employment information

Annual average number of employees 17
Total hours worked by all employees last year 36090
Sign here

Knewingly falsifying this document may result in a fine.

| certify that | :mqm examined this d nﬁ._m_.; and that to the of my knowledge the entries

are trui xmn.._qm 3 _._n comple!
\ Corp. Sec

Qc:ﬁmz exetutive Tille
1173 /65

3
417-B65-6200 )

Phone Date




OSHA's Form 300A vear 2025 &
Summary of Work-Related Injuries and llinesses sﬁuw..u,_wu.m,ﬁﬂﬁ,ﬁﬁ

Form approved OM8 no. 1218.0176

All establishments covered by Part 1904 must complete this Summary page, even if no injuries or
illnesses occurred during the year. Remember to review the Log to venify that the entries are complete

Using the Log, count the individual entries you made for each category. Then write the fotals below, Establishment information
making sure you've added the entries from every page of the log. If you had no cases write “0.*
Employees former employees, and their representatives have the right to review the OSHA Form 300 in Your establishment name  Springfield Builders, Inc
its entirety. They aiso have limiled access to the OSHA Form 301 or its equivalent. See 29 CFR
1904.35, in OSHA's Recordkeeping rule, for further details on the access provisions for these forms. Street 619 N Jefferson Ave
il ingfield tate MO Zj 65806
INumber of Cases Clty  Spangh S 0
Industry description (e.g., Manufacture of motor truck trailers)
Total number of Total number of  Total number of cases Total number of General Contractor
deaths cases with days  with job transfer or other recardable
away from work  restriction cases Slandard Industrial Classification (SIC), if known (e.g., SIC 3715)
0 0 0 0
(G) (H) (n )

Number of Days Employment information

Total number of Taotal number of days
days of job transfer away from work Annual average number of employees 17
or restriction
0 0 Tolal hours worked by all employees last year 35164
{K) (L
In, lilness T "
jury and s Types Sign here
Total number of... Knowingly falsifying this document may result in a fine.
(M)
(1) Injury 0 (4) Poisoning 0
(2) Skin Disorder 0 (5) All other illnesses 0
(3) E.m.mu_ﬂm»oJ\ | certify that { haye examined this document and Sm_ to the best of my knowledge the entries
Condition 0 are ”Em\m.n_._a . and oo_._.__uwmﬂm\
Corp. Sec
r.l\ n@ﬂﬂm:ﬁ execulive Tille
417-865-6200 ] 116728
Post this Summary page from February 1 to April 30 of the year following the year covered by the form Phone Date

Public reporting burden for this collection of information Is estimated to average 50 minutes per response, including lime to review the instruction, search and
gather the data needed, and complete and review the collection of information. Persons are not required fo respond to the collection of information unless it
displays a currently valid OMB control number. If you have any comments about these estimales or any aspects of this data collection, contact: US

Deoartment of Labor. OSHA Office of Statistics. Room N-3644. 200 Constitution Ave. NW. Washinaton. DC 20210. Do not send the completed forms to this




Exhibit C.3.4 - Experience Modification Rate letter

Nixon & Lindstrom
INSURANCE

February 17, 2026

Springfield Builders inc
619 North Jefferson Avenue
Springfield, MO 65806-1114

To Whom it May Concern,
The following are the Experience Modification Rate Factors for past 3 years,
04/01/2023 77

04/01/2024 .84
04/01/2025  1.03

Thank you,

Stephanie Meyer

801 East Battlefield Road
Springfield, MO 65807
417.881.6623 | 2417.881.8268 {fax)
www.nixonins.com



Exhibit C.4.1 - COI
®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
02/17/2026

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In llsu of such endorsements).

PRODUCER

ﬁgm;?cr Allison McCord

Nixon & Lindstrom Insurance PHONE ey (417)881-6623 | tAle, oy, (417) BB1-8269
901 E. Battlefield Road L s, amccord@nixonins.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Springfield MO 65807-4811 INSURERA: EMC Insurance Companies 21415
INSURED INSURER B :
Springfisld Builders Inc INSURER C :
619 North Jefferson Avenue INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Springfield MO 65806-1114 | \ysurerF;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER;  25-26 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PCLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED HBY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
ADDLSUBR]
itk TYPE OF INSURANCE INSB | WvD POLICY NUMBER (MIDDIYYYY) | (MDD Y) LTS
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGE g 1,000,000
DAMAGE 70 RENTED
| CLAIMS-MADE CCCUR PREMISES (Ea ocourrence) $ 500,000
MED EXP {Any ane person) $ 10’000
A 5DY98G90 04/01/2025 | 04/01/2028 | pergonaL & ADY INJURY ¢ 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APFLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE § 2.000,000
POLICY fEeT Loc PRODUCTS - coMPioPAG | 2:000,000
OTHER; $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea aceldent) $ 1,000,000
| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED
A Dy || 35hED 5E98980 04/01/2025 | 04/01/2026 | BODILY INJURY (Par accident) | §
S¢| HIRED S| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE Iy
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident}
$
><| umBRELLALIAB | D] oocur EACH OCGURRENCE ¢ 10,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 5J98990 04/01/2025 | 04/01/2026 | ,corecare g 10,000,000
oen | €] rerenmion 5 16,000 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN x| SFrure [ | & 7006900
A O o N ECUTIVE NIA 5HY8Y90 04/01/2025 | 04/01/2026 |-EkEACHACCIDENT $
{Mandatory In NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE § § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1.000.000
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE -PoLICY LT | § 'Y
L d/Rented Eaui " LImit 300,000
eased/Rented Equipmen
A ap 5C98990 04/01/2025 | 04/0112026 | Deductible 1,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS f VEHIGLES (ACORD 191, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be altached If mors space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Springfield Builders Ing ------- Certificate Exhibit

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE GANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
AGCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

B

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Exhibit D

Contractor's Past Project Experience

1 2 i} 4
PROJECT NAME Crossway Baptist Church Student O'Reilly Auto Parts (200+ Grizzly Distribution Center, Ozarks Technical Community
Center & Sanctuary Renovation completed projects) Showroom Expansion College Table Rock Campus
PROJECT LOCATION Springfield, MO 21 States Springfield, MO Hollister, MO
PROJECT TYPE Religious Retail Industrial Educational
OWNER Crossway Baptist Church O'Reilly Auto Parts Grizzly Industrial Ozarks Technical Community
College
ARCHITECT BRP Architects Various BRP Architects Baron Design & Associates
CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT Kirk Looney Kirk Looney Kirk Looney Kirk Looney
EXECUTIVE

KEY PERSONNEL (include
titles)

Tony Hapkins, Vice-President Kirk
Looney, President

Tony Hopkins VP, Kirk Looney
President, Brett Simmaons, Project
Manager, lennifer Thompson
(Project Coordinator)

Tony Hopkins, Vice-President Kirk
Loaney, President

Tony Hopkins, Vice-President Kirk
Looney, President

PROJECT DETAILS Contract Amount: 54,292,177 Contract Amount: $150,000,000+  |Contract Amount: $3,928,914 Contract Amount: $7,829,774
Completion Date: 2023 Completion Date: 2010-2026 Completion Date: 2021 Completion Date: July 2013
% Self-Performed Work: 10% % Self-Performed Work: 10% % Self-Performed Work: 10% % Self-Performed Work: 10%
PROJECT [x] Design-bid-build [x] Design-bid-build ] Design-bid-build [ | Design-bid-build
DELIVERY [:] Design-build D Design-build 1:| Design-build D Design-build
METHCD @ CM constructor E CM constructor CM constructor E CM constructor
l:‘ CM advisor D CM advisor D CM advisor D CM advisor
E] Other D Other D Other D Other
SUSTAINABILITY None Naone None None

CERTIFICATIONS




Exhibit E

Contractor's Past Project Experience, Continued

5 6 7 8
PROJECT NAME CASA of Southwest Missouri Early Childhood Facility for Ava R-l | Jordan Valley Community Health | Mountain View Birch Tree Middle
Headquarters & Clubhouse School Distric Center Kingsley Dental & Benton School
Avenue Facility
PROJECT LOCATION Springfield MO Ava MO Springfield MO Mountain View, MO
PROJECT TYPE Civic / Child Services Educational Educational / Healthcare Educational
OWNER CASA of Southwest Missouri Ava R-| School District lordan Valley Community Health Mountain View - Birch Tree R-Ill
School District
ARCHITECT Esterly Scheider Assaciates Ball Architects, PC Hood-Rich Architects Ball Architects, PC

CONTRACTOR'S PROJECT
EXECUTIVE

Kirk Looney

Kirk Looney

Kirk Looney

Kirk Looney

KEY PERSONNEL {include
titles)

Tony Hopkins VP, Kirk Looney
President, Brett Simmons, Project
Manager, Jennifer Thompson
(Project Coordinator)

Tony Hopkins VP, Kirk Looney
President, Brett Simmons, Project
Manager, Jennifer Thompson
(Project Coordinator)

Tony Hopkins VP, Kirk Looney
President, Brett Simmons, Project
Manager, Jennifer Thompson
(Project Coordinator)

Tony Hopkins VP, Kirk Looney
President

PROJECT DETAILS Contract Amount; 51,112,910 Contract Amount: 54,340,050 Contract Amount: 54,195,945 Contract Amount: 56,242,167
Completion Date: 2023 Completion Date: 2026 Completion Date: 2025 Completion Date: 2010
% Self-Performed Work: 10% % Self-Performed Wark: 10% % Self-Performed Work: 10% % Self-Performed Work: 10%
PROJECT [ | Design-bid-build x| Design-bid-build [x] Design-bid-build x| Design-bid-build
DELIVERY D Design-build |:| Design-build D Design-build l:] Design-build
METHOD E] CM constructor |:| CM constructor D CM constructor D CM constructor
D CM advisor D CM advisor D CM advisor D CM advisor
D Other D Other D Other D Other
SUSTAINABILITY None None None None

CERTIFICATIONS




BID BOND Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
Hartford, CT 06183

CONTRACTOR: SURETY:

(Name, legal status and address) (Name, legal status and principal place of business)
Springfield Builders, Inc Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
619 North Jefferson Avenue 7465 W 132nd St
Springfield, MO 65806-1114 Overland Park, KS 66213
OWNER:

(Name, legal status and address)
The City of West Plaing
1910 Holiday Lane

West Plains, MO 65775
BOND AMOUNT: Five Percent (5%) of amount bid

PROJECT:

(Name, location or address, and Profect number, if any)

Building Renovation, West Plains Wholesale Grocery Building - Provalus
601 Washington Ave, West Plains MO 65775

The Contractor and Surety are bound to the Owner in the amount set forth above, for the payment of which the Coniractor and
Surety bind themselves, theix heirs, executors, administrators, snccessors and assigns, jointly and severally, as provided herein.
The conditions of this Bond are such that if the Owner accepts the bid of the Contractor within the time specified in the bid
documents, or within such time period as may be agreed to by the Owner and Contractor, and the Contractor either (1) enters
into a coniract with the Owner in accordance with the terms of such bid, and gives such bond or bonds as may be specified in
the bidding or Contract Documents, with a surety admitted in the jurisdiction of the Project and otherwise acceptable to the
Ownez, for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the prompt pavment of labor and material Turnished in the
prosecution thercof, or (2) pays to the Owner the difference, not 10 exceed the amount of this Bond, between the amount
specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Owner may in good faith contract with another party to perform the
work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be mll and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect. The Surety
hereby waives any notice of an agreement between the Owner and Contractor to extend the time in which the Owner may
accept the bid. Waiver of notice by the Surety shall not apply to any extension exceeding sixty (60) days in the aggregate
beyond the time for acceptance of bids specified in the bid documents, and the Owner and Contractor shail obtain the Sarety’s
consent for an extension beyond sixty (60) days.

IT this Bond is issped in connection willk a subconiraclor’s bid o a Coniraclor, the term Contractor in (his Bond shall be
deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location of the Project, any
provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions
conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein, When so fumished, the intent is
that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

The Company executing this bond vouches that this document conforms io American Institute of Architects Document A310, 2010
edition 1



Signed and sealed this __ 19th  day of  February =~ 2026

Springfield Builders, Inc

(Py.‘ incipal) (Seal)
yf U:ce- P‘?‘JA&:{'

(Titid)

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

A

~ (Sﬁreiy) Sheryl C Amos (Seal)
Z

Attorney-in-fact

; ﬂssa/ (Title)

The Company executing this bond vouches that this document conforms to American Institute of Architects Document A310, 2010
edition



Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company

AT,
TRAVELERSJ St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut (herein
collectively called the "Companies"), and that the Companies do hereby make, constitute and appoint SHERYL C AMOS of
SPRINGFIELD . Missouri , their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal and
acknowledge any and all bonds, recognizances, conditional undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof on behalf of
the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or
guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions or proceedings allowed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed, and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed, this 21st day of April,
2021.

aYe
State of Connecticut M
By:

City of Hartford ss. Robert L. Raney*Senior Vice President

On this the 21st day of April, 2021, before me personally appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to be the Senior
Vice President of each of the Companies, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the
purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of said Companies by himself as a duly authorized officer.

ﬁ;ﬁ%’ﬁ%

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal. \ .
My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2026 5 1"} %]j f%é
/ = Anna P. Nowik, Notary Public

This Power of Attorney is granted under and by the authority of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of each of
the Companies, which resolutions are now in full force and effect, reading as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice
President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint
Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents to act for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appeintee such authority as his or her certificate of authority
may prescribe to sign with the Company's name and seal with the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and other writings
obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may
remove any such appointee and reveoke the power given him or her; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or
any Vice President may delegate all or any part of the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided
that each such delegation is in writing and a copy thereof is filed in the office of the Secretary; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance,
or conditional undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive
Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the
Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary;
or (b) duly executed (under seal, if required) by one or more Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents pursuant to the power prescribed in his or her
certificate or their certificates of authority or by one or more Company officers pursuant to a written delegation of authority; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President,
any Vice President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to
any Power of Attomey or to any certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Assistant Secretaries or Attorneys-in-
Fact for purposes only of executing and attesting bonds and undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, and any such Power of
Attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed
and certified by such facsimile signature and facsimile seal shall be valid and binding on the Company in the future with respect to any bond or
understanding to which it is attached.

I, Kevin E. Hughes, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of each of the Companies, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a
true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which remains in full force and effect.

Dated this 19th day of February . 2026

Y loo & flogiur

¢ Kevin E. Hughes, Assitant Secretary

To verify the autheniicity of this Power of Attorney, please call us at 1-800-421-3880.
Please refer to the above-named Aitorney(s)-in-Fact and the details of the bond to which this Power of Attorney is attached.,



FORM CD-512 U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

(REV 12-04)
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Applicants should review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature
on this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 28, “New Restrictions on Lobbying.”

LOBBYING Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and  Thg undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge
implemented at 15 CFR Part 28, for persons entering into a grant,  and belief, that:

cooperative agreement or contract over $100,000 or a loan or loan
guarantee over $150,000 as defined at 15 CFR Part 28, Sections
28.105 and 28.110, the applicant certifies that to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:

In any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this commitment providing for the United
States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid,
by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of
any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required state-
ment shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000

_ and not more than $100,000 for each such failure occurring
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been  4p of before October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000

paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 314 not more than $110,000 for each such failure occurring
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of  4sar October 23, 1996.

Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,”
in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at
all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure occurring on or before
October 23, 1996, and of not less than $11,000 and not more
than $110,000 for each such failure occurring after October 23,
1996.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the
above applicable certification.

NAME OF APPLICANT AWARD NUMBER AND/OR PROJECT NAME

Serinalpld Builhers | e NeskPlotns Whdp ol Grocem Building Benoviction

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

’l;*vx “b?l‘h‘:.

SlGN@BeZ//Mi&QV—__ DATE 2(14(7,4,
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Organization Name

Project #

Affirmative Statement for Contracted Parties

Springfield Builders, Inc.

Contractor/Corporation

Anthony Hopkins . Vice President

Upon penalty of perjury, I, of
Corperatz Officar Name Corporate Officer Title
Springfield Builders, Inc. , do affirmatively state that all employees working for
Corporatien Mame
Springfield Builders, Inc are lawfully present in the United States. I further attest,

S Springfield Builders, Inc

Corperation Name

of Section 285.530.1, RSMo, and shall not violate Section 285.530 during the length of the contract.

/l;m) ﬂﬁ,?lans. Vice-Resident 0&\1&

under penalty of perjury, that is not knowingly in violation

Corporate Officer Name & Title (Printed) Signamrg )
state oF Missouri ;
COUNTY OF Creene ) ss.

On this \Ol_ day of Eiﬁliaﬂﬂ\ in the year 202(, before me, LO < HU\O\\(\@&, ol

Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared _‘By\uj ‘\-\r(\ag\g]nQ ;
Officar Name
\ice Poesidend o

Corporate Officer Title

=

, known to me to be the person

Carporation/Limitad Lizbility Cerporation Nama

who executed the within Agreement on behalf of said company and acknowledged to me that he or
she executed the same for the purposes therein stated.
o Lol
O

Ndtaty Public '

My commission expires W \D 2@1_"

LORI HUGHES
Notary Public — Notary Seal
ST TE OF MISSOURI
My C Gra?\nEpricrgthz 10, 2027
ommissio
Commission #15183&69




E-Verify

Company ID Number: 186460

E-VERIFY IS A SERVICE OF DHS AND 55A

THE E-VERIFY
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
FOR EMPLOYERS

ARTICLEI
PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and Springfield Builders Inc
(Employer). The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms and conditions which the Employer will follow
while participating in E-Verify.

E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee’s eligibility to work in the United States after
completion of Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form 1-9). This Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific responsibilities of the
Employer, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and DHS.

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and
Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a
note). The Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, “Employment Eligibility Verification” and
Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and subcontractors (Federal

contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on Federal
contracts.

ARTICLE Il
RESPONSIBILITIES

A.RESPONSIBILITIESOFTHEEMPLOYER
1. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is clearly
visible to prospective employees and all employees who are to be verified through the system:
a. Notice of E-Verify Participation
b. Notice of Right to Work
2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers

of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify. The Employer also agrees to keep such

information current by providing updated information to SSA and DHS whenever the representatives’ contact
information changes.

3. The Employer agrees to grant E-Verify access only to current employees who need E-Verify access.
Employers must promptly terminate an employee’s E-Verify access if the employer is separated from the
company or no longer needs access to E-Verify.
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E-Verify

Company ID Number: 1gg460

E-VERIFY IS A SERVICE OF DHS AND 55A

4. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of the E-Verify
User Manual.

5. The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who will create E-Verify cases will complete the
E-Verify Tutorial before that individual creates any cases.

a. The Employer agrees that all Employer representatives will take the refresher tutorials when
prompted by E-Verify in order to continue using E-Verify. Failure to complete a refresher tutorial will
prevent the Employer Representative from continued use of E-Verify.

6. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form I-9 procedures, with two exceptions:

a. Ifanemployee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List B"
documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.2(b)(1)(B)) can be
presented during the Form I-9 process to establish identity.) If an employee objects to the photo
requirement for religious reasons, the Employer should contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218.

b. Ifan employee presents a DHS Form I-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form |-766

(Employment Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete Form I-9, the
Employer agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the
employee’s Form I-9. The Employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS with its
review of photo mismatches that employees contest. DHS may in the future designate other documents
that activate the photo screening tool.

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees still retain the right
to present any List A, or List B and List C, document(s) to complete the Form I-9.

7. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form I-9 or to print the
screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form I-9.

8. The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms I-9 that relate to its employees, or from other
requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including the obligation to comply with the anti-
discrimination requirements of section 274B of the INA with respect to Form 1-9 procedures.

a. Thefollowing modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer’s obligation to not
employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B
identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer
confirms the identity and employment eligibility of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, the
Employer establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 274A(a)(1)(A) of the
Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect to the hiring of that employee; (3) If the Employer
receives a final nonconfirmation for an employee, but continues to employ that person, the Employer
must notify DHS and the Employer is subject to a civil money penalty between $550 and $1,100 for each
failure to notify DHS of continued employment following a final nonconfirmation; (4) If the Employer
continues to employ an employee after receiving a final nonconfirmation, then the Employer is subject
to a rebuttable presumption that it has knowingly
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Company ID Number: 186460

employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 274A(a)(1)(A); and (5) no E-Verify participant is
civilly or criminally liable under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information provided
through the E-Verify.

b. DHS reserves the right to conduct Form I-9 compliance inspections, as well as any other enforcement
or compliance activity authorized by law, including site visits, to ensure proper use of E-Verify.

9. The Employer is strictly prohibited from creating an E-Verify case before the employee has been hired,
meaning that a firm offer of employment was extended and accepted and Form I-9 was completed. The
Employer agrees to create an E-Verify case for new employees within three Employer business days after each
employee has been hired (after both Sections 1 and 2 of Form I-9 have been completed), and to complete as
many steps of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the E-Verify User Manual. If E-Verify is
temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended until it is again operational in order to
accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries during the period of unavailability.

10.  The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify for pre-employment screening of job applicants, in support of
any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use that this MOU or the E-Verify User Manual does not
authorize.

11.  The Employer must use E-Verify for all new employees. The Employer will not verify selectively and will
not verify employees hired before the effective date of this MOU. Employers who are Federal contractors may
qualify for exceptions to this requirement as described in Article I1.B of this MOU.

12, The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Article Il below) regarding tentative
nonconfirmations. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide them
with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case. The Employer
agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees with limited English
proficiency to employees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions to employees and
instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The Employer must allow
employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to contest the
finding, while their case is still pending. Further, when employees contest a tentative nonconfirmation based
upon a photo mismatch, the Employer must take additional steps

(see Article 111.B. below) to contact DHS with information necessary to resolve the challenge.

13.  The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon the employee's
perceived employment eligibility status while SSA or DHS is processing the verification request unless the
Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.1(l)) that the employee is not work authorized. The
Employer understands that an initial inability of the SSA or DHS automated verification system to verify work
authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, a case in continuance

(indicating the need for additional time for the government to resolve a case), or the finding of a photo
mismatch, does not establish, and should not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work
authorized. In any of such cases, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest the
finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse employment
consequences based upon the employee’s perceived employment eligibility status
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(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring an
employee to work in poorer conditions, withholding pay, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal
contract or other assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or she is unauthorized to work) until and unless
secondary verification by SSA or DHS has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has been issued. If the
employee does not choose to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo mismatch or if a secondary
verification is completed and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the Employer can find the employee is
not work authorized and terminate the employee’s employment. Employers or employees with questions
about a final nonconfirmation may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781
(worker hotline).

14. The Employer agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 274B of the INA
as applicable by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, employment eligibility
verification, or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national origin or citizenship status, or
by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer understands that such illegal practices
can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as provided in part D below, or discharging or
refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound “foreign” or have received tentative
nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any violation of the immigration-related unfair
employment practices provisions in section 274B of the INA could subject the Employer to civil penalties,
back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of Title VIl could subject the Employer to back pay
awards, compensatory and punitive damages. Violations of either section 274B of the INA or Title VIl may
also lead to the termination of its participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the
anti-discrimination provision, it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD).

15. The Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from E-Verify only to confirm the
employment eligibility of employees as authorized by this MOU. The Employer agrees that it will safeguard
this information, and means of access to it (such as PINS and passwords), to ensure that it is not used for
any other purpose and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is not
disseminated to any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to perform the
Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for such dissemination as may be authorized in advance
by SSA or DHS for legitimate purposes.

16. The Employer agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach of personal information.
Breaches are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access to E-Verify personal data. All suspected or
confirmed breaches should be reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via email at E-Verify@uscis.dhs.gov.
Please use “Privacy Incident - Password” in the subject line of your email when sending a breach report to
E-Verify.

17. The Employer acknowledges that the information it receives from SSA is governed by the Privacy Act (5
U.S.C. §552a(i)(1) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)). Any person who obtains this
information under false pretenses or uses it for any purpose other than as provided for in this MOU may be
subject to criminal penalties.

18. The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance monitoring and evaluation of
E-Verify, which includes permitting DHS, SSA, their contractors and other agents, upon

Page 4 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13



E-VERIFY IS A SERVICE OF DMS AND SSA

E-Verify

Company ID Number: 186460

reasonable notice, to review Forms I-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its employees
regarding the Employer’s use of E-Verify, and to respond in a prompt and accurate manner to DHS requests
forinformation relating to their participation in E-Verify.

19. The Employer shall not make any false or unauthorized claims or references about its participation in
E-Verify on its website, in advertising materials, or other media. The Employer shall not describe its services
as federally-approved, federally-certified, or federally-recognized, or use language with a similar intent on
its website or other materials provided to the public. Entering into this MOU does not mean that E-Verify
endorses or authorizes your E-Verify services and any claim to that effect is false.

20. The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any language used therein
has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without first obtaining the prior
written consent of DHS.

21. The Employer agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only under license by DHS/USCIS
(see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not be used in any
manner that might imply that the Employer’s services, products, websites, or publications are sponsored
by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with DHS, USCIS, or E-Verify.

22. The Employer understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as authorized
by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its participation in
E-Verify according to this MOU.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS

1. Ifthe Employer is a Federal contractor with the FAR E-Verify clause subject to the employment
verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR, it will become familiar with and comply with the most current
version of the E-Verify User Manual for Federal Contractors as well as the E-Verify Supplemental Guide for
Federal Contractors.

2. In addition to the responsibilities of every employer outlined in this MOU, the Employer understands that
ifitis a Federal contractor subject to the employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR it must
verify the employment eligibility of any “employee assigned to the contract” (as defined in FAR 22.1801).
Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer may not create a
second case for the employee through E-Verify.

a. AnEmployer that is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract award
must enroll as a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of contract award
and, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to verify employment eligibility of new hires using E-Verify. The
Employer must verify those employees who are working in the United States, whether or not they are
assigned to the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, such verification of new hires
must be initiated within three business days after the hire date. Once enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal
contractor, the Employer must begin verification of employees assigned to the contract within 90
calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee’s assignment to the
contract, whichever date is later.
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b. Employers enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a contract
award must use E-Verify to begin verification of employment eligibility for new hires of the Employer
who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within three business
days after the date of hire. If the Employer is enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 calendar
days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to
use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who are working in the United States,
whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new hires must be initiated within three
business days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a Federal contractor in E-Verify must begin
verification of each employee assigned to the contract within 90 calendar days after date of contract
award or within 30 days after assignment to the contract, whichever is later.

. Federal contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. 1001(a)), state
or local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian tribes, or sureties performing under
a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency under a performance bond may choose to
only verify new and existing employees assigned to the Federal contract. Such Federal contractors may,
however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or all existing employees hired after November 6, 1986.
Employers in this category must begin verification of employees assigned to the contract within 90
calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee’s assignment to the
contract, whichever date is later.

d. Upon enrollment, Employers who are Federal contractors may elect to verify employment eligibility
of all existing employees working in the United States who were hired after November 6, 1986, instead
of verifying only those employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After enrollment, Employers
must elect to verify existing staff following DHS procedures and begin

E-Verify verification of all existing employees within 180 days after the election.

e. The Employer may use a previously completed Form I-9 as the basis for creating an E-Verify case for
an employee assigned to a contract as long as:

i. That Form |-9 is complete (including the SSN) and complies with Article I1.A.6,

ii. Theemployee’s work authorization has not expired, and

iii. The Employer has reviewed the Form I-9 information either in person or in communications
with the employee to ensure that the employee’s Section 1, Form I-9 attestation has not changed
(including, but not limited to, a lawful permanent resident alien having become a naturalized
U.S. citizen).

f. The Employer shall complete a new Form I-9 consistent with Article I1.A.6 or update the previous
Form I-9 to provide the necessary information if:

i.  The Employer cannot determine that Form |-9 complies with Article 11.A.6,

ii. Theemployee’s basis for work authorization as attested in Section 1 has expired or changed
or

b

iii. The Form I-9 contains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete.

Note: If Section 1 of Form |-9 is otherwise valid and up-to-date and the form otherwise complies with
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Article I.C.5, but reflects documentation (such as a U.S. passport or Form |-551) that expired after
completing Form I-9, the Employer shall not require the production of additional documentation, or use the
photo screening tool described in Article Il.A.5, subject to any additional or superseding instructions that
may be provided on this subject in the E-Verify User Manual.
g. The Employer agrees not to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned employee
who has previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU or to authorize
verification of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a Federal contractor based on this
Article,

3. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU is a
performance requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract, and the Employer
consents to the release of information relating to compliance with its verification responsibilities under this
MOU to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the Employer’s compliance with Federal
contracting requirements.

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA

1. SSA agrees to allow DHS to compare data provided by the Employer against SSA’s database. SSA sends
DHS confirmation that the data sent either matches or does not match the information in SSA’s database.

2. SSA agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides through E-Verify procedures. SSA also
agrees to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to individuals responsible for the
verification of Social Security numbers or responsible for evaluation of E-Verify or such other persons or
entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a), the Social Security Act
(42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 401).

3. SSAagrees to provide case results from its database within three Federal Government work days of the
initial inquiry. E-Verify provides the information to the Employer.

4. SSA agrees to update SSA records as necessary if the employee who contests the SSA tentative
nonconfirmation visits an SSA field office and provides the required evidence. If the employee visits an SSA
field office within the eight Federal Government work days from the date of referral to SSA, SSA agrees to
update SSA records, if appropriate, within the eight-day period unless SSA determines that more than eight
days may be necessary. In such cases, SSA will provide additional instructions to the employee. If the
employee does not visit SSA in the time allowed, E-Verify may provide a final nonconfirmation to the
employer.

Note: If an Employer experiences technical problems, or has a policy question, the employer should contact
E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHS

1. DHS agrees to provide the Employer with selected data from DHS databases to enable the Employer to
conduct, to the extent authorized by this MOU:

a. Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and
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b. Photo verification checks (when available) on employees.

2. DHS agrees to assist the Employer with operational problems associated with the Employer's
participation in E-Verify. DHS agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone
numbers of DHS representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process.

3. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer with access to E-Verify training materials as well as an

E-Verify User Manual that contain instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures, and requirements for both SSA
and DHS, including restrictions on the use of E-Verify.

4. DHS agrees to train Employers on all important changes made to E-Verify through the use of mandatory
refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verify User Manual. Even without changes to
E-Verify, DHS reserves the right to require employers to take mandatory refresher tutorials.

5. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's participation in

E-Verify. DHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti-discrimination notices issued by the Office of Special
Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, U.S. Department of
Justice.

6. DHS agrees to issue each of the Employer’s E-Verify users a unique user identification number and
password that permits them to log in to E-Verify.

7. DHS agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides, and to limit access to such information to
individuals responsible for the verification process, for evaluation of E-Verify, or to such other persons or
entities as may be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used only to verify the accuracy of Social
Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and Federal criminal laws, and to administer
Federal contracting requirements.

8. DHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that provides (in conjunction with SSA
verification procedures) confirmation or tentative nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility
within three Federal Government work days of the initial inquiry.

9. DHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS records) for employees
who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmations and photo mismatch tentative nonconfirmations. This provides
final confirmation or nonconfirmation of the employees' employment eligibility within 10 Federal Government
work days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS determines that more than 10 days may be necessary. In
such cases, DHS will provide additional verification instructions.

ARTICLEII
REFERRALOFINDIVIDUALSTOSSAAND DHS

A. REFERRAL TO SSA

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must print the notice as
directed by E-Verify. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide
them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case.
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The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees
with limited English proficiency to employees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions
to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The
Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if
they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending.

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the tentative
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfirmation. Only the
employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative nonconfirmation.

3. After a tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer will refer employees to SSAfield offices only as directed
by E-Verify. The Employer must record the case verification number, review the employee information
submitted to E-Verify to identify any errors, and find out whether the employee contests the tentative
nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social Security number, or any other corrected employee
information that SSA requests, to SSA for verification again if this review indicates a need to do so.

4. The Employer will instruct the employee to visit an SSA office within eight Federal Government work days.
SSA will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government work
days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.

5. While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case updates.

6. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social Security Administration
number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA.

B. REFERRAL TO DHS

1. Ifthe Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer must promptly notify
employees in private of the finding and provide them with the notice and letter containing information
specific to the employee’s E-Verify case. The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the
translated notice and letter for employees with limited English proficiency to employees. The Employer must
allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to
contest the finding, while their case is still pending.

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the tentative
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfirmation. Only the
employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative nonconfirmation.

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the employee chooses to contest a tentative
nonconfirmation.

4. If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer will instruct the
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employee to contact DHS through its toll-free hotline (as found on the referral letter) within eight Federal
Government work days.

5. If the Employer finds a photo mismatch, the Employer must provide the photo mismatch tentative
nonconfirmation notice and follow the instructions outlined in paragraph 1 of this section for tentative
nonconfirmations, generally.

6. The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo
mismatch, the Employer will send a copy of the employee’s Form I-551, Form I-766, U.S. Passport, or passport
card to DHS for review by:

a. Scanning and uploading the document, or
b. Sending a photocopy of the document by express mail (furnished and paid for by the employer).

7. The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo match/mismatch, the
Employer must forward the employee’s documentation to DHS as described in the preceding paragraph. The
Employer agrees to resolve the case as specified by the DHS representative who will determine the photo
match or mismatch.

8. DHS will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government
work days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.

9. While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case updates.

ARTICLEIV
SERVICE PROVISIONS

A. NO SERVICE FEES

1. SSA and DHS will not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this MOU. The
Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access E-Verify, an Employer
will need a personal computer with Internet access.

ARTICLEV
MODIFICATIONAND TERMINATION

A. MODIFICATION

1. This MOU is effective upon the signature of all parties and shall continue in effect for as long as the SSA
and DHS operates the E-Verify program unless modified in writing by the mutual consent of all parties.

2. Any and all E-Verify system enhancements by DHS or SSA, including but not limited to E-Verify checking
against additional data sources and instituting new verification policies or procedures, will be covered under
this MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental MOU that outlines these changes.
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B. TERMINATION

1. The Employer may terminate this MOU and its participation in E-Verify at any time upon 30 days prior
written notice to the other parties.

2. Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, DHS may terminate this MOU, and thereby the Employer’s
participation in E-Verify, with or without notice at any time if deemed necessary because of the requirements
of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or DHS that there has been a breach of system integrity or
security by the Employer, or a failure on the part of the Employer to comply with established E-Verify
procedures and/or legal requirements. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, termination
of this MOU by any party for any reason may negatively affect the performance of its contractual
responsibilities. Similarly, the Employer understands that if it is in a state where E-Verify is mandatory,
termination of this by any party MOU may negatively affect the Employer’s business.

3. An Employer that is a Federal contractor may terminate this MOU when the Federal contract that requires
its participation in E-Verify is terminated or completed. In such cases, the Federal contractor must provide
written notice to DHS. If an Employer that is a Federal contractor fails to provide such notice, then that
Employer will remain an E-Verify participant, will remain bound by the terms of this MOU that apply to non-
Federal contractor participants, and will be required to use the E-Verify procedures to verify the employment
eligibility of all newly hired employees.

4. The Employer agrees that E-Verify is not liable for any losses, financial or otherwise, if the Employer is
terminated from E-Verify.

ARTICLEVI
PARTIES

A. Some or all SSA and DHS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by contractor(s), and SSA and
DHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as necessary. By separate agreement with
DHS, SSA has agreed to perform its responsibilities as described in this MOU.

B. Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, substantive or
procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its agencies, officers, or
employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees.

C. The Employer may not assign, directly or indirectly, whether by operation of law, change of control or
merger, all or any part of its rights or obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of DHS,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Any attempt to sublicense, assign, or transfer
any of the rights, duties, or obligations herein is void.

D. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising out of or related to
E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or criminal, and for any liability wherefrom, including (but not limited to)
any dispute between the Employer and any other person or entity regarding the applicability of Section 403(d)
of IIRIRA to any action taken or allegedly taken by the Employer.
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E. The Employer understands that its participation in E-Verify is not confidential information and may be
disclosed as authorized or required by law and DHS or SSA policy, including but not limited to, Congressional
oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, determinations of compliance with Federal contractual
requirements, and responses to inquiries under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).

F. Theindividuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this MOU
on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. The Employer understands that any inaccurate statement,
representation, data or other information provided to DHS may subject the Employer, its subcontractors, its
employees, or its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2)
immediate termination of its MOU and/or; (3) possible debarment or suspension.

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between DHS and the Employer.

To be accepted as an E-Verify participant, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the signature
page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218.
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Approved by:

E-VERIFY IS A SERVICE OF DHS AND 55A

Employer

Springfield Builders Inc

Name (Please Type or Print) Title

Kirk M Looney

Signature Date
Electronically Signed 02/02/2009
Department of Homeland Security - Verification Division
Name (Please Type or Print) Title
USCIS Verification Division
Signature Date
Electronically Signed 02/02/2009
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Information Required for the E-Verify Program

Information relating to your Company:

Springfield Builders Inc
Company Name

619 N. Jefferson
Springfield, MO 65806

Company Facility Address

Company Alternate Address

County or Parish GREENE

Employer Identification Number 431550325

North American Industry

Classification Systems Code el
Parent Company

Number of Employees 20 to 99
Number of Sites Verified for 1 site(s)
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Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in each State:

MO 1
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Company ID Number: 4gg450

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or operational
problems:

Name Kirk M Loonev

Phone Number 4178656200105

Fax 4178656402

Email kirk@sprinafieldbuilders.com
Name Tonv Hookins

Phone Number 4178656200107

Fax

Email tonv@sprinafieldbuilders.com
Name Codv Cottenaim

Phone Number 4178656200106

Fax

Email codv@sprinafieldbuilders.com
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This list represents the first 20 Program Administrators listed for this company.
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